
 PUBLIC MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION 

 District Education Office  

  22225 Brown Avenue   

Date: Wednesday, January 18, 2023   Maple Ridge BC V2X 8N6 

Time: 6:00 p.m. 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

“For me, education was power.” - Michelle Obama 

A G E N D A 

A. OPENING PROCEDURES ITEM 1 

1. Territory Acknowledgement

2. Call to Order

3. Correspondence

4. Approval of Agenda

5. Invitation for Public Input to matters on the Agenda - Members of the public can provide input

on decision items on the public meeting Agenda by emailing board@sd42.ca by no later than 5:30 pm on
January 18, 2023. The email subject line should read: INPUT regarding Decision Item. All public input
received will be shared with trustees electronically. This agenda item has a time limit of 10 minutes.

B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. December 7, 2022 ITEM 2 

C. PRESENTATIONS - Individuals and groups invited by the Board to make presentations on any subject pertinent to Board

business. Time limits for individual presentations will be established to allow all speakers to present within the time limit for this item. This agenda

item has a time limit of 20 minutes including questions; extension is at the discretion of the Board.

D. DELEGATIONS – the Board will receive delegations on any subject pertinent to Board business provided the item has been

placed on the agenda by the Agenda Preparation Committee.  Time limits for individual delegations will be established to allow all registered

delegations to present within the time limit for this item.  The Board will ordinarily receive for information the item presented and may take action

after due deliberation.  This agenda item has a time limit of 20 minutes including questions; extension is at the discretion of the Board.

E. DEFERRED ITEMS

F. DECISION ITEMS

1. Chairperson

2. Superintendent of Schools

a) School Growth Plans ITEM 3 

3. Secretary Treasurer

a) Budget Process ITEM 4 

4. Board Committees and Advisory Committee Reports

a) Budget

b) Finance

i. First Quarter Financial Statements ITEM 5 

c) Facilities Planning

d) Board Policy Development

mailto:board@sd42.ca


 

e) Education 

f) Aboriginal Education 

 

G. INFORMATION ITEMS 

 

1. Chairperson 

2. Superintendent of Schools 

 

a) Superintendent’s Update      ITEM 6 

 

3. Secretary Treasurer 

4. Board Committees & Advisory Committee Reports 

 

a) Budget     

b) Finance 

c) Facilities Planning 

d) Board Policy Development 

 

   i. Board Policy Development Committee Work Plan  ITEM 7 

    2022-2023 

 

e) Education 

f) Aboriginal Education  

       

H.   TRUSTEE MOTIONS AND NOTICES OF MOTIONS 

 

 1. Motion to BC School Trustees Association     ITEM 8 

  Annual General Meeting 2023 

      

I.   TRUSTEE REPORTS 

1. BC School Trustees Association 

 

J.     QUESTION PERIOD         ITEM 9 

 
Question period will be restricted to questions only – statements and debate will not be permitted. Questions, with the 
exception of Trustee questions, will be limited to one question per person. Members of the public can submit questions for the 
board by emailing them to board@sd42.ca by no later than 5:30 pm on January 18, 2023.  The email subject line should 
read: QUESTION PERIOD. All questions received before the start of the question period will be answered in the order they are 
received. This agenda item has a time limit of 10 minutes; extension is at the discretion of the board. 

 

K.  OTHER BUSINESS 

 
1. Public Disclosure of Closed Meeting Business    ITEM 10 

 

L. ADJOURNMENT 

mailto:board@sd42.ca


To: Board of Education From: Chairperson 
Elaine Yamamoto 

Re: OPENING PROCEDURES Date: January 18, 2023 
(Public Board Meeting) 

Decision 

1. TERRITORY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to acknowledge that this meeting is taking place on the shared 
traditional and unceded territories of Katzie First Nation and Kwantlen First Nation. We 
welcome and recognize all First Nations, Métis, and Inuit students and families in our 
schools and community. We welcome and recognize the many different cultures that 
are represented in our schools and community. 

2. CALL TO ORDER

3. CORRESPONDENCE

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the Agenda be approved as circulated. 

5. INVITATION FOR PUBLIC INPUT TO MATTERS ON THE AGENDA - Members of the
public can provide input on decision items on the public meeting Agenda by emailing board@sd42.ca by no 
later then 5:30 p.m. on January 18, 2023. The email subject line should read: INPUT regarding Decision 
Item. All public input received will be shared with trustees electronically. This agenda item has a time limit of 
10 minutes. 

ITEM 1 

Public Agenda Page 1

mailto:board@sd42.ca


To: Board of Education From: Chairperson 
Elaine Yamamoto 

Re: APPROVAL OF MINUTES Date: January 18, 2023 
(Public Board Meeting) 

Decision 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the Minutes of the December 7, 2022 Public Board Meeting be approved as 
circulated. 

Attachment 

ITEM 2 

Public Agenda Page 2



 PUBLIC MINUTES OF THE 
BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING 

 Wednesday, December 7, 2022 (6:00 PM) 
      Board Room, DEO 

__________________________________________________________________ 

IN ATTENDANCE: 

BOARD MEMBERS:  STAFF:     
Chairperson – Elaine Yamamoto  Superintendent – Harry Dhillon 
Vice-Chairperson – Kim Dumore Secretary Treasurer – Flavia Coughlan 
Trustee – Hudson Campbell Deputy Superintendent – Shannon Derinzy 
Trustee – Gabe Liosis Senior Mgr, Communications – Irena Pochop 
Trustee – Mike Murray Executive Coordinator – Karen Yoxall 
Trustee – Pascale Shaw  
Trustee – Kathleen Sullivan 

A. OPENING PROCEDURES

1. Territory Acknowledgement

The Chairperson acknowledged that this meeting is taking place on the shared traditional and 
unceded territories of Katzie First Nation and Kwantlen First Nation. The Chairperson welcomed 
and recognized all First Nations, Métis, and Inuit students and families in our schools and 
community. The Chairperson welcomed and recognized the many different cultures that are 
represented in our schools and community. 

2. Call to Order

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. 

The Chairperson welcomed and thanked everyone for attending. 

3. Correspondence

Moved/Seconded 

• C. Zacharuk, Deputy Minister, Ministry of Education and Child Care
• C Johnston, President, BC Teachers’ Federation
• First Nations Leadership Council

THAT the Board receive all correspondence, for information. 
CARRIED 

4. Approval of Agenda

Moved/Seconded 

THAT the Agenda be approved as circulated. 
CARRIED 

ATTACHMENT

Public Agenda Page 3



Public Board Meeting Minutes – December 7, 2022 
Page 2 of 4 

 
5. Invitation for Public Input to matters on the Agenda 

 
The Chairperson advised that members of the public were able to provide input on decision items 
on the Agenda by emailing board@sd42.ca by no later than 5:30 pm on December 7, 2022. 
 
No public input was received. 
 
B. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
Moved/Seconded 
 
THAT the Minutes of the November 16, 2022, Public Board Meeting be approved as circulated. 
CARRIED 
 
C. PRESENTATIONS  
 
D. DELEGATIONS 
 
E. DEFERRED ITEMS 
  
F.  DECISION ITEMS 
 

1. Chairperson 
2. Superintendent of Schools 
3. Secretary Treasurer  

 
a.  School District Statement of Financial Information (SOFI) 

 
Moved/Seconded 
 
The Secretary Treasurer reported on the School District Statement of Financial Information 
(SOFI) for the year ended June 30, 2022.  
 
The report is prepared annually in accordance with the Financial Information Act; included in 
the report are a schedule of remuneration and expenses that lists all payments made to 
trustees and to employees with remuneration exceeding $75,000, and a schedule of suppliers 
of goods and services that received payments in excess of $25,000. 
 
THAT the Board approve the School District Statement of Financial Information for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2022. 
CARRIED 
 

4. Board Committees and Advisory Committee Reports 
 

a) Budget 
b) Finance 
c) Facilities Planning 
d) Board Policy Development 
e) Education 
f) Aboriginal Education 
 

G. INFORMATION ITEMS 
  

Public Agenda Page 4

mailto:board@sd42.ca


Public Board Meeting Minutes – December 7, 2022 
Page 3 of 4 

 
1. Chairperson 

 
a) Committee Appointments 
 

Moved/Seconded 
 

The Chairperson reported on trustee committee appointments. 
 
THAT the Board receive for information the attached committee appointments for a period of 
one year ending November 2023. 
CARRIED 
 

2.  Superintendent of Schools 
 

a) Superintendent’s Update 
 

Moved/Seconded 
 
The Superintendent acknowledged the work of Deputy Superintendent Shannon Derinzy, who is 
retiring from the school district.  
 
Deputy Superintendent Derinzy provided an overview of the implementation of the Integrated 
Child & Youth (ICY) teams pilot program in the school district, and noted that it is now close to 
fully operational.  
 
THAT the Board receive the Superintendent’s Verbal Update, for information. 
CARRIED 
 

3. Secretary Treasurer 
4. Board Committees and Advisory Committee Reports 

 
a) Budget 
b) Finance 
c) Facilities Planning 
d) Board Policy Development 
e) Education 
f) Aboriginal Education 
 
 i. Receive Minutes of Meeting 
 

Moved/Seconded 
 

THAT the Board receive the November 23, 2022, Minutes of the Aboriginal Education Advisory 
Committee, for information. 
CARRIED 

 
H. TRUSTEE MOTIONS AND NOTICES OF MOTIONS  
 
I. TRUSTEE REPORTS 
  

Public Agenda Page 5



Public Board Meeting Minutes – December 7, 2022 
Page 4 of 4 

 
BC School Trustees Association 
Trustees reported on their attendance at the BC School Trustees Association New Trustee 
Orientation and Academy which took place from December 1 – 3, 2022. Trustee Murray 
reported on the Provincial Council meeting and Trustee Shaw reported on the Professional 
Learning Committee meeting. 
 
District Parent Advisory Council 
The Chairperson reported on updates received at the November 30, 2022, meeting and noted 
that there will be a presentation on “The Role of the Trustee” at the January 25, 2023, 
meeting. 
  
Ridge Meadows Education Foundation 
Trustee Murray spoke to the valuable impact of the committee members. 
 
Good News 
Trustee Murray and Trustee Liosis spoke about their attendance at the Salvation Army’s 
Dignity Breakfast; Trustee Liosis spoke about the GLOW Maple Ridge event, which featured 
the unveiling of the Rain Enlightens Hummingbird Illumination, and about Garibaldi 
Secondary’s production of Grease. Trustee Dumore spoke about Maple Ridge Community 
Foundation’s Dancing in the Ridge competition event, at which two teachers from Garibaldi 
Secondary won the trophy and Trustee Yamamoto spoke about her attendance at the Elder’s 
dinner. Trustees also spoke about their participation in the British Columbia School Trustees 
Association New Trustee Orientation and Academy event. 
 
J. QUESTION PERIOD  

  
 Questions were received on the following: 
 

• Field trip cancellation 
 
K. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Moved/Seconded  
 
THAT the Board adjourn the meeting. 
CARRIED 
 
The Public Board meeting adjourned at 7:01 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________                      _________________________________ 
Elaine Yamamoto, Chairperson                                Flavia Coughlan, Secretary Treasurer 

Public Agenda Page 6



To: Board of Education From: Superintendent 
Harry Dhillon 

Re: SCHOOL GROWTH PLANS Date: January 18, 2023 
(Public Board Meeting) 

Decision 

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: 

The School Act stipulates that the Board of Education must approve school plans and that 
school plans must be made available to the parents of students attending that school.   

School plan 

8.3 

(1) In each school year, a board must approve a school plan for every school in the school
district.

(2) A board must make a school plan approved under subsection (1) available to the parents
of students attending that school.

Principals of all schools and the Riverside Program have prepared a summary of the goal(s) 
contained in the school growth plan for approval by the Board of Education. School growth 
goals relate to four themes:  social emotional learning, literacy, secondary innovation and 
improved learning and assessment. These summary documents will be posted on school 
websites, included in school newsletters along with links to the complete school growth plan 
and made available to parents of students attending that school.   

The Superintendent has reviewed and approved the School Growth Plans and is 
recommending that the Board of Education approve the School Growth Plans, as presented. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the Board approve the school growth plans and direct the Superintendent to 
make the school growth plans available to parents of students attending each school 
in the school district. 

Attachment 

ITEM 3 

Public Agenda Page 7



School Growth Plans

School Growth Plans are prepared annually for each school. Principals work with school staff to develop the 
plans. The goals identified in the school growth plans fall into the following four broad categories: improved 
learning and assessment, social emotional learning (school culture and climate), literacy, and secondary 
innovation. The table below documents the "big ideas" of the school goals selected by each school community.

Improving  
Learning & 

Assessment

Secondary 
Innovation

SEL 
(School 
Culture)

Literacy Big Ideas

SECONDARY SCHOOLS

District Alternate Community and Care - Indigenous embedded 

Garibaldi Secondary Anti-racism, First Peoples - Focus on wellness, SOGI  

Maple Ridge Secondary Culture and climate - Equity, diversity and inclusion 

Pitt Meadows Secondary Culturally responsible teaching practices - Positive connections 

Samuel Robertson Technical Anti-racism - Sense of belonging  

Thomas Haney Secondary Self-directed learning - Community and culture - Mental health and wellness  

Westview Secondary Numeracy, create safe places for practice - Equity, community and connection 
- Trauma informed

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS

Albion Resiliency - Better readers and writers

Alexander Robinson Strengthen community - Including all learners 

Alouette Embedding Indigenous ways of teaching and learning - Reading for fun

Blue Mountain Growth in numeracy -  Self-regulation/emotional resiliency through a lens of 
Indigenous ways - Growth in literacy

c’usqunela Performing and cultural arts, love of, incorporation of Indigenous ways - 
Relational - Reading success 

Davie Jones Numeracy, creating safe spaces to practice - Honour diversity of all - Increase 
ready fluency and comprehension

Edith McDermott Numeracy, begin exploration - Sense of belonging, First People’s - Continual 
improvement in literacy

Environmental School Inclusive community rooted in place 

Eric Langton Belonging and self-reflection - Reading for joy 

Fairview Indigenous world views to create a sense of belonging - Focus on writing  

Glenwood Identifying laggings skills, creating interventions - Indigenous ways of 
knowing 

Golden Ears Belonging, inclusion, connection (equity) - Enjoyment of reading 

Hammond Resilience and wellness - Develop positive attitudes in reading

Harry Hooge Sense of belonging (equity) - Targeted literacy instruction 

Highland Park Inclusive and welcoming community (equity) - Reading; comprehend, analyze 
and respond 

Kanaka Creek Numeracy for struggling students - Community - Literacy for struggling students 

Laity View Indigenous ways of knowing - Love of writing

Maple Ridge Elementary Emotions and resilience - Focus on  writing 

Pitt Meadows Elementary Welcoming, safe and caring community that supports diversity - Literacy; 
confident and capable learners

Webster's Corners Well being - Joy of reading 

Whonnock Fostering connectedness using the outdoors - Reading comprehension 

Yennadon Students to feel safe and valued - Literacy assessment and intervention

ABORIGINAL EDUCATION Connection and belonging; focus on key transitions; family connections 

CONTINUING EDUCATION Learning and assessment; culture and climate

ATTACHMENT

Public Agenda Page 8



Identified through the Deepening Indigenous Education and Equity Report are recommendations to support students of 
ancestry in their post-secondary planning and transition to life beyond secondary school. These recommendations have 
been substantiated through our conversations with the AbEd Advisory Committee, Elders' Committee, and data sources 
(student learning survey, EDI, MDI, grade to grade transition rates, and graduation data). As such, the department 
recognizes the key transitions in a student's journey of entry to school, Gr 7-8, Gr 9-10, and transitioning to post-
secondary. The goal is to focus our efforts on students during these key transition years and define the 0.4 FTE teaching 
time assigned to transition planning with an emphasis on leadership planning to foster a sense of belonging, identity, and 
community as well as supporting transitions with new students entering Kindergarten and students transitioning from 
elementary to secondary schools. 

�� Assign teaching time to developing leadership activities for Grades 6, 7 and secondary students.
�� Identify early learning as a portfolio focus for the teacher librarian of the Gepartment.
�� Identify post-secondary connections as a portfolio focus to a resource teacher to promote connections to post-

secondary options and support students with applications, identifying financial supports, preparing scholarship�
and bursary applications, and hosting secondary family night with a focus on Indigenous student connections�
to post-secondary institutions.

�� Continue Leadership Committee for the department and schedule monthly meetings.
�� Plan at least three leadership events for secondary students to participate along with follow up activities at�

school sites between the events.
�� Focus efforts to developing opportunities for Grade 6 and 7 students to connect with each other and with AbEd�

staff and students at their feeder secondary schools.
�� Plan annual events specific to cultivating connections with Grade 6 and 7 students.
�� Collaborate with early learning helping teacher to plan literacy events inclusive of Indigenous Worldviews and�

authentic voices.
�� Continue with summer reading program for elementary students.
���  Collaborate with schools to connect families to District transition opportunities (entering Kindergarten and 

Grade�7 students entering secondary)

Students will report through the student forum planned for March 2, 2023, that their identity is being recognized and sense 
of belonging has improved through Aboriginal Education initiatives and in schools compared to the last student forum 
information gathered from students in March 2020. Post-secondary transition rates will improve. Literacy assessments will 
improve over time as collected through June reports. 

To foster a sense of connection and belonging, the Aboriginal Education Department will focus efforts on students at key 
transitions - entry to school (primary years), transition of Grade 7 to Grade 8, students entering the graduation program 
from Grade 9 into Grade 10� and supporting students with post-secondary planning. 

Aboriginal Education 

Kirsten Urdahl-Serr 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 9



The Deepening Indigenous Education and Equity Report highlights student quotes that specifically speak to wholistic 
learning as well as recommendations to support Aboriginal Education staff training in: 1. cultural and social emotional 
learning; 2. understanding learning support services to improve support of students and families in learning supports. To 
support the DRIPA plan Theme 4 Social, Cultural, and Economic Well Being under Social Actions, action 4.1 states 
"Identify and undertake concrete measures to increase the literacy and numeracy achievement levels of Indigenous 
students at all levels of the K-12 education system, including the early years", Aboriginal Education staff recognize the 
supplemental supports they can offer students in wholistic approaches to literacy and numeracy will support classroom 
instruction. As such, staff recognize need for learning wholistic strategies to expand their academic supports and activities 
with students. 

1. Monthly opportunities for staff to attend training for extending cultural learning [i.e. staff teach each other or invite
community members (Elders, Knowledge Keepers) to offer teachings].

2. Training for wholistic mental health supports or cultural teachings offered to staff for professional development days.
3. Additional hours for ASW staff to offer after school supports for students with a focus on cultural, social/emotional,

and or academic needs.
4. Opportunity for all AbEd staff to co-plan and co-lead cultural learning opportunities for after school programs for

students to collaborate and share knowledges.
5. PVP will plan learning opportunities for staff to access training in learning support services and wholistic academic

activities and resources for staff to learn to support classroom teaching.
6. Staff are supported to access professional development opportunities.

Staff will self-report that they feel an increase in confidence in being able to support students in a variety of ways - from 
cultural teachings to supporting students through academic and or social/emotional strategies with holistic outcomes 

*teachings and strategies that are inclusive of Indigenous ways of knowing and being

The staff of the Aboriginal Education Department will continue to learn new strategies and or teachings to support 
students in their social emotional and cultural learning. Staff will undergo training with Zholistic
 initiatives in literacy and 
numeracy to increase their capacity to support student learning as well as training to improve their knowledge of learning 
support services so they may better support families whose children have learning needs. 

Aboriginal Education 

Kirsten Urdahl-Serr 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 10



Through departmental conversations (growth planning, department meetings, conversations with 
community partners, and Advisory), the isolation from the pandemic continues to impact families 
and students resulting LQ�a need to access opportunities to restart connections with community. The 
Deepening Indigenous Education and Equity report also highlighted the need for families to be 
connected to each other and their school communities. To foster a sense of community and 
belonging with each other and the school system, families need to be provided opportunity to gather 
and connect. 

�� Community partners were consulted in September 2022 and conversations highlighted D�need�
for social emotional supports for students and their families.

�� Advisory was consulted September 2022 for allocation of accumulated surplus from 2021-22�
to allocate funding to specific programs to promote connection and belonging with family�
events being identified as a high priority.

�� Additional meetings for Family Committee to meet monthly to plan events.
�� Collaborate with community organizations to plan events.
�� Collaborate with schools to plan events for families to connect for both elementary and�

secondary.
�� Create a survey to ask families for feedback from an event, the kinds of community 

connections�they are seeking and how they may contribute to the events.

Families will offer feedback that demonstrates the opportunity to connect with other families has 
improved their sense of belonging and has improved the connection to their school community. 
Numbers attending events and distribution of attendees across all schools. 

The Aboriginal Education Department will focus our efforts on ensuring students and families feel 
connected to the SD42 Indigenous community. 

Aboriginal Education 

Kirsten Urdahl-Serr 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 11



Continuing Education and the Connected Learning Community celebrate the diversity of our student population within our 
school community.�Our learners enroll from within and outside School District 42 and creating meaningful connections 
and collaboration with secondary school staff is important. The pandemic has fueled a disconnect, and we have seen a 
significant shift frRm a preference for in�person learning YHUVXV online learning. Continuing Education and Connected
Learning Community are interconnected and distinct. Continuing Education in person and online learning supports a 
diverse group of SD42 learners, enhancing and helping students to maximize their potential and increase their 
opportunities in the greater community. 

� Access resources for teachers and staff - professional literature and development opportunities
� Ensure the school environment is welcoming - front entrance and hallways - design physical space that supports�

community and community use of the building
� Ensure staff and students have access to supports if required - including mental health
� Celebrate student successes
� Promote options for Continuing Education and Connected Learning Community classes
� Meet regularly with individuals and groups working together in the building, and with stakeholders, including prison�

staff
� Monitor student enrolment trends in CE/CLC courses and consider implications on culture, climate� and staffing
� Install a street�level sign identifying RSC programs offered. 

� Interviews with students shared across the district and on social media
� Regular communications with school administrators, counselors� and support teachers
� Entrance and bulletin boards around school�WKDW�DUH warm, inclusive, DQG�welcoming
� Website and social media channels updated and active
� Identify students on IEP's and collaborate with school-based support teachers where possible
� Identify adult students who would benefit from learning adaptations and support them to be successful
� During Summer Learning 2022, English First Peoples 11 was offered. English First Peoples 12 in�person classes will�

be offered in both semesters and English First Peoples 11 will be offered when the course is ready
� Create and implement a student voice survey

Social and Emotional Learning - Culture & Climate 
Promote an inclusive, connected and supportive learning environment for students and staff. This is important within the 
school community so that everyone feels a sense of belonging and purpose. We also want to continue to increase the 
profile, recognition� and value of the programs offered at Riverside Centre in the greater community.

Riverside Centre Continuing Education and Connected Learning Community 

Tricia McCuaig 

Ken Cober

Public Agenda Page 12

gary_mckenna
Cross-Out



As a staff, we see the need and value to maximize flexibility when supporting students to successfully meet personal 
learning goals. 

� Review and reflect on the Pinistry K-12 student reporting policy draft (published September 2021)
� Erin Smeed will continue to represent RSC on district assessment committee
� Ensure we are included in district assessment committee (10-12)
� Consider effective strategies (current and new) to engage reluctant learners
� Schedule District Secondary Helping Teacher or Aboriginal Education VP facilitate Pro-D at staff meetings
� Incorporate Indigenous content/resources into curriculum
� Continue to consult with IT for a solution in ensuring our adult learners have access to School District email and�

associated learning platforms

� Invite District Helping Teacher in to discuss proficiency scale, student self-assessment, learning updates, summary of
learning, descriptive feedback within the Continuing Education context

� Ensure that CLC promotes various forms of communication to allow for students, teachers, clerical and admin staff to
connect

� Ensure we are documenting our communication process for at risk students
� Apply assessment approaches as relevant to our context - eg: self-assessment, goal setting (such as advisors

support with grad plans, pace of course with online learning, moving towards proficiency scales)
� Positive change in overall completion rates for students in CLC courses
� Annual collection and comparison of CLC course completion rates

Secondary Innovation - Learning and Assessment 
Focus on continuous improvement in instruction and assessment. The updated reporting policy creates a new, 
expanded flexibility around curriculum and core competencies. Consider best practices that emerge due to the shifts 
necessitated by the pandemic and the recently updated DRAFT K-12 Student Reporting Policy. 

Riverside Centre Continuing Education and Connected Learning Community 

Tricia McCuaig 

Ken Cober

Public Agenda Page 13



%�  Rationale
District 42 Alternate Secondary draws students from a variety of schools both within and outside the district.  We, as a�
staff, hope to ensure that students feel welcome and connected with our school.  Our purpose is to improve student�
learning through building relationships, honouring identity and co-creating a safe space where students can find their�
place, work from their strengths, build community and experience success.

Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Belonging/Mastery: connecting to the land; expanding school garden (constructing a greenhouse and irrigation system,�
creating school meals from garden produce, growing indigenous plants and learning about plants from local ,ndigenous�
knowledge keepers); connecting to local ,ndigenous culture (Joseph Dandurand and our ASW and ART - story telling &�
gifting of song, drum making, totem carving); developing a new logo and branding clothes (new sign for the APC�building, 
stowable outdoor furniture for outdoor learning space); return to field trips (cedar bark harvesting, hikes,�snowboarding, 
etc.); using song recording (studio), videography (editing and producing content) to foster a sense of�student ownership of 
school identity; producing crafts and decorations to create a student-centred atmosphere of�belonging, welcoming and 
community; Introduction of Connecting Program to reintegrate students.
Independence: community & academic engagement programs to promote independence; programs�include Foundry & 
Foundry Works, CYMH, Pathfinders, Triangle BC, WorkBC, Douglas College Post-Secondary�Bridging Program (Reboot), 
Coast Mental Health (Housing & Mental Health Support), Alouette Addictions/ASTRA,�Trades & Apprentice.
Generosity: engaging students in their recognition of what generosity means; examples include baking for the�school, 
crafting with elementary school students, mentorship, environmental clean up, gardening

%�  Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

• Face-to-face attendance & participation data for school programs & cultural activities shared at morning staff�
meetings

• Anecdotal evidence collected through report cards, ASW information sharing & YCW reports
• Attendance data for students in the "Connecting" program; rebuilding their attendance & reintegration into District�

42 Alternate Secondary
• Successful completion of project-based assignments and academic work in general
• Graduation Rate
• Student and staff feedback received in formal and informal school-based meetings

Social and Emotional Learning (Culture and Community) 
Staff will continue to develop and promote a healthy sense of school community and identity based on an ethic of care. 
We will encourage and promote student connection with peers, staff and community supports to align with students’ needs, 
strengths� and interests. 

District 42 Alternate Secondary 

Steve Wiebe 

Public Agenda Page 14



Strong social emotional health enables an individual to integrate their thoughts, emotions, and behavioXrs in 
a way that supports greater health and well-being in life. Students who have an understanding of mental 
health and wellness support can not only utilize this knowledge for themselves, but also be of support to their 
peers. Students demonstrate higher rates of engagement and achievement in� classroom settings where 
social-emotional learning and wellness are embedded into the curricular activities. 

In and out of the classroom, our staff will foster compassion and respect by teaching and practicing positive 
social and emotional norms and addressing concerns surrounding mental health and wellness in an authentic 
and meaningful way. To help facilitate this action plan, GSS will work to provide resources to staff and 
students, support wellness initiatives, strive to further connect students to outside resources, create awareness 
of mental health and support amongst students, and normalize conversations about mental health and 
wellness. 

- Regular check-ins at monthly staff meeting surrounding staff attitudes and social-emotional wellness

- More publication and aware of resources in school-based newsletters, in washrooms and other general�
spaces, in classrooms and assemblies

- Purposeful, on-going counsellor visits to classrooms

- Create opportunities for students to engage in learning about the benefits of compassion, peer support and�
wellness through school-life balance

- Mindfulness will continue to be supported with the introduction and support of \oga, both in class time and�
extracurricular

- Mindfulness/Zellness/Compassionate Systems learning for staff and students��PE health units, CLE 10,�
CLC 12, embedded in MYP approaches to learning��

Social Emotional Learning and Personal Wellness� Staff will continue their work towards empowering school 
community members to achieve their full potential as resilient, compassionate, and thoughtful citizens 
through resources, mentorship, trauma-informed practice� and positive relationships. 

Garibaldi Secondary School 

Ian Liversidge 

Ken Cober

Public Agenda Page 15



From the October 2022 Growth Planning Day, the staff identified the need for actionable steps 
towards Truth and Reconciliation, and towards increasing awareness of Dnti-Uacism education, 
internalized bias, and to meaningfully and authentically celebrate and acknowledge all members 
within our school learning community. Together we came to a renewed understanding that we have 
an incredibly diverse community with an increasing range of diverse needs based on cultural/ethnic 
identities. 

)LUVW�3HRSOHV�3ULQFLSOHV¶ of Learning will be shared regularly in staff meetings, newsletters, and 
classroom graphics linking to curriculum��IRU�H[DPSOH�WKH�Link Crew Aboriginal Games event�DQG 
Hngagement of the Aboriginal Support Worker in classrooms focusing on First Nations cultural 
experiences. With guidance from the Anti-Racism Committee, the school will provide more 
awareness and engagement in Dnti-Uacism learning through self-reflection and anti-bias activities. 
Students will continue their development of the Fore Fompetencies/Dpproaches to Oearning, 
specifically around the Sersonal and Vocial Fompetencies and awareness of identity in their various 
courses� such as English First Peoples, Fareers, Fapstone, and WKH Sersonal Slanning Sroject. 

- Regular check-ins at monthly staff meetingV surrounding staff attitudes and anti-bias reflections.
- More publication and awareness of resources, supports� and equity education in school-based 

newsletters,�in general spaces, in classrooms and assemblies.
- Feedback from the school sub-committee focusing on Dnti-Uacism and Hquity� which includes voices from�

staff and students.
- Year�over�year data collections of the number of students selecting courses with Indigenous curricular�

foundation.
- Inclusion of Indigenous voiceV in school-wide celebrations/cultural activities (i.e. Truth and Reconciliation�

Day, Remembrance Day).
- Increasing the visibility for Indigenous voiceV WKURXJK�school displays, artwork, DQG�curricular connections.

Garibaldi Secondary will continue to increase awareness of Dnti-Uacism initiatives within the school 
and district, and to foster a deeper understanding of ways of knowing and being, histories, and 
cultures of First Nations, Inuit� and Metis as outlined in the 9th Professional Standard for BC 
Educators 

Garibaldi Secondary School 

Ian Liversidge 

Ken Cober

Public Agenda Page 16



An inclusive school community is important for student dignity, security, and opportunity to best achieve their 
potential. In the past several years� participation in the Rainbow Rebels Club has increased with a greater 
number of GSS students willing to acknowledge their gender and/or sexual identity journey. Year over year� 
the GSS community has and continues to become a more ethnically diverse community and it is important for 
us to be culturally aware and continue the pathways of inclusion for all students. 

Individual staff and depDUWPHQWV have already been exploring inclusion in the classroom and now, as a 
collective staff, we are looking to coordinate initiatives and activities both inside and outside of the classroom. 
We will work to add organizations to the many groups working on this process. Our staff has already begun 
coordinating initiatives and activities around themes of inclusion. We are developing a common dialogue for 
pathways of support for students. 

- National flags from around the world representing the countries of origin for GSS community members on�
display in the front hallway

- &ultural guest speakers for classrooms, grade groups, and school-wide presentations
- &urricular integration�²�meaningful, subject-specific lesson plans modeling and encouraging inclusion.
- 5ecommendations and actions coming out of the work of our anti-racism committee

GSS staff are committed to creating an inclusive school community that creates opportunity for all people 
to exist as contributing members of the community� while being valued for their abilities and uniqueness. 

Garibaldi Secondary 

Ian Liversidge 

Ken Cober

Public Agenda Page 17



It has been a challenging WKUHH years for all in education. For the better part of WKUHH school years� 
students and staff were challenged to build community without the shared opportunities that 
typically exist. As a result, many schools saw an increase in negative student behavioXrs and a 
decrease in overall morale. As we have returned to full in-person attendance without restrictions on 
student/staff activities, MRSS is using this as an opportunity to be intentional with opportunities to 
build a positive school culture and climate. 

First, staff were asked to complete the Gallup Q12 Employee Engagement Survey on the first day of 
school. This survey has provided administration with information on how to improve the employee 
H[SHULHQFH��1H[W��WKH�VFKRRO�KDV�VWDUWHG�WR�LPSOHPHQW�HOHPHQWV�RI�WKH�-RVWHQ¶V�5HQDLVVDQFH�
program, a program that over the past 30 years has helped schools across the globe renew their 
climate and culture. An element of this program is to review how we recognize both staff and 
students for their contributions and achievements. There is a group of staff and students meeting to 
plan and implement Renaissance starting with The Pulse Student Recognition Survey. 

We will measure success using the following: 
� The Gallup Q12 Employee Engagement Survey questions demonstrated that staff desire�

more conversations about their personal growth and development
� The Pulse Student Recognition Survey to help us launch our Renaissance Program
�Ministry of Education Student Learning Survey results (47% of *rade ��V and 50% of grade�

��V�LQGLFDWH�VFKRRO�LV�D�SODFH�WKH\�IHHO�WKH\�belong Post or Dll of the Wime).

Our school community will focus on further developing our school culture and climate. 

Maple Ridge Secondary School 

Grant Frend 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 18



If we are serious about ensuring all students are given the opportunity to reach their full potential and 
have a positive experience in our schools and beyond, we must investigate and address all inequities 
in our system. This includes viewing our schools through a culturally responsive lens. 

Our Truth and Reconciliation work continues as we work with our Aboriginal Support Workers and 
Aboriginal Support Teacher to provide professional learning for staff (i.e. growth planning session on 
Territory Acknowledgments). Further, we are implementing additional Indigenous Education courses 
i.e. First Peoples English 12� As well, we will work with Wayne Chow, Gistrict VP� and Amelia 
Laidlaw,�helping teacher, to develop anti-racism learning opportunities for staff� including active 
participation in�the anti-racism FRPPLWWHH¶V survey of our community (with results shared leading to 
action planning).�We will review key policies with staff (i.e. Inclusive Schools) as well as reviewing 
IEP implementation�protocols.

We will use the following information to assess our progress. First, Ministry Student Learning 
Survey data (67% of *Uade 10 students and 55% of *rade 12 students are learning to understand 
and support human rights and diversity). Next, data from district survey on anti-racism will be used 
to guide our planning in future years. Further, we will collect staff and student feedback, including 
Indigenous education course enrolment information, as well as further data from the Ministry Student 
Learning Survey regarding Aboriginal Education. 

Staff will continue to grow our practice and knowledge in Hquity, Giversity, and Lnclusion, including 
anti-racism. 

Maple Ridge Secondary School 

Grant Frend 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 19



Research states that SEL programming significantly improves children's academic performance. While the public health context that we find 
ourselves in seems to have improved, we are still experiencing COVID related pressures and anxieties. Undoubtedly, these pressures and 
external stressors have impacted our learners. Our hope as a school community�is that we can provide staff and students with the 
connection and the supports needed to navigate these times, thereby allowing them to perform better in school, as well as feel valued, 
heard and seen as an important member of our community. 

- Cross curricular collaboration and programming
- Build on working relationships and feeder schools
- Warmly greeting our students at the front door or classroom door
- Food Baskets in the classroom
- Self-regulation tools in the classroom
- Continued focus on improving common spaces to make them more welcoming
- District SEL Framework
- Engage in Zellness activities in class or at Ilex
- Increased extra-curricular athletic and club offerings for students
- Collaboratively FUHDWLQJ�³&RPPXQLW\�$JUHHPHQWV´�LQ�FODVVHV

o Giving students voice and choice in classroom setting
o Engaging in wellness activities in class or Ilex time to help reduce stress/anxiety
o Hangry baskets in the classroom
o Engage in teaching practices that support SEL (cooperative learning, balanced instruction, competence building, etc.
o Incorporate self-regulation tools in the classroom

- Student Learning Survey & YDI Data
- Student Feedback and reflections
- Increased student participation in extra-curricular clubs and activities
- Positive attendance rates
- Lower rate of office referrals with more positive classroom behaviours
- Observational analysis
- Increased rates of student self-assessment
- Students can identify their trusted adults in the building
- Observational analysis ± increased rate of self-assessment
- Students can identify who their advocates or trusted adults are in the school

Goal 1: Social Emotional Learning (SEL): As we enter our fourth academic year impacted by a global pandemic, the need to focus on SEL 
is essential. Building positive connections and healthy relationships are critical to staff and students developing a sense of belonging and 
helping individuals reach their full potential as learners. 

Pitt Meadows Secondary School 

Colin Sharpe 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 20



,Q�OLQH�ZLWK�6WDQGDUG����RI�WKH�3URIHVVLRQDO�6WDQGDUGV�IRU�%&�(GXFDWRUV��LW�LV�LQFXPEHQW�XSRQ�DOO�HGXFDWRUV�WR�³IRVWHU�D�
GHHSHU�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�ZD\V�RI�NQRZLQJ�DQG�EHLQJ��KLVWRULHV��DQG�FXOWXUHV�RI�)LUVW�1DWLRQV��,QXLW�DQG�0HWLV�´ As the 
+RQRXUDEOH�-XVWLFH�0XUUD\�6LQFODLU�VWDWHG��³(GXFDWLRQ�LV�ZKDW�JRW�XV�KHUH��DQG�HGXFDWLRQ�LV�ZKDW�ZLOO�JHW�XV�RXW�´ By 
examining our practice through a culturally responsive lens, it is our hope to continue to decolonize our teaching methods 
and language and work towards addressing the inequities that exist. With approximately 8% of our student population 
identifying ancestry and as the home school for the Katzie First Nation, we have a responsibility to ensure that our practice 
and our teaching is inclusive, and we incorporate the First Peoples Principles of Learning and Indigenous content across 
all curricular areas. 

- In connection with the SD42 AbEd DepDUtPHQW, invite local .nowledge .eepers into classes to facilitate authentic/local 
cultural�programming. - Increasing the number of cultural celebrations in school.

- Increased highlighting of cultural connections in the classroom. - Increased course offerings that have an Indigenous�
focus. - Visible cultural elements throughout the building. - More Place-Based Learning - Have AbEd room open all day�
to create a safe space. - Sitting in circles to remove the power imbalance - Intentionally incorporating more Indigenous�
practices and ways of knowing across curriculum.

- Engage and highlight local communities (history, language, traditions, etc.)
- Intentionally incorporating more Indigenous knowledge, practices and ways of knowing across all curricular areas
- More place-based learning
- Sitting in circles so that everyone feels equal and there is no power imbalance

- Stronger relationships with students and families of ancestry.
- More students sharing their stories and celebrating their cultures and histories.
- Student Learning Survey Data
- Interviews with students to collect their stories on how this work has impacted their school experience
- Observational analysis.

Goal 2: Culturally responsive teaching practices to continue to develop an inclusive, culturally responsive school by 
expanding our collective efforts to incorporate First Peoples Principles of Learning and Indigenous content across all 
curricular areas. 

Pitt Meadows Secondary School 

Colin Sharpe 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 21



Students need to be part of the conversation when it comes to assessment and communicating 
growth and learning. Our assessment and evaluation procedures must inform our teaching practice 
and serve as a function to support learning. By collaboratively engaging with colleagues, we need to 
continue to develop our strategies and understanding, especially with the proficiency scale, in order 
to promote more inclusive practices and further student growth and achievement. 

- Staff involvement in district and school based professional learning opportunities.
- Targeted professional development opportunities to explore our practices across the curriculum.
- Continue with Sroficiency Vcale working group and start a Ounch DQG�Oearn series around our�

practice
- Departmental Vcope DQG Vequence around Sroficiency Vcale terminology refining learning 

targets�to facilitate continuity and consistency.
- Co-creation of rubrics and learning maps, integrating strength-based language.
- Increased self-assessment in class, as well as exit interviews and portfolio assessment.

- Staff DQG student reflections �Grade 10 & 12 Student Learning Survey data�
- Increased participation in cross-curricular learning opportunities and activities
- Increased rates of success in Grades 8 DQG 9, as well as other classes that incorporate the�

proficiency scale as the main model of classroom assessment. - 
- Increased rates of retention in VHQLRU�courses.
- Students are able to communicate where they are at in relation to curricular competencies:�What 

are you learning? How is it going? Where to next?

Goal 3: Staff will continue to develop their understanding and learning around assessment 
practices in order to maximize student learning, engagement� and achievement. 

Pitt Meadows Secondary School 

Colin Sharpe 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 22



There is a significant difference between the way SRT students in *rade 10 feel about their school experiences when 
compared to our *rade 12s. When asked the question ³'R you like VFKRRO"´� as part of the most recent Student 
Learning Survey, the *rade 10s responded ³DJUHH or strongly DJUHH´ only 29% of the time. However, when *rade 12s 
were asked WKH�VDPH�TXHVWLRQ������³DJUHH´�RU�³VWURQJO\�DJUHH�´�7KH�VDPH�WUHQG�KROGV�IRU�WKH�TXHVWLRQV�³'R�\RX�IHHO�
ZHOFome at VFKRRO"´�DQG�³,V�VFKRRO�D�SODFH�ZKHUH�\RX�EHORQJ"´�7KH�GDWD�FOHDUO\�VKRZV�WKDW�WKH�*UDGH���V�FRQVLVWHQWO\�
UHSRUWHG SRVLWLYH�IHHOLQJV�DW�UDWHV�DERYH�GLVWULFW�DYHUDJHV�ZKLOH�WKH�*UDGH���V�FRQVLVWHQWO\�UHSRUWHG�QHJDWLYH�IHHOLQJV�DW�
D�KLJKHU�rate than district averages. In discussions with staff and students, there was agreement that for two &29,'�
years our younger students never had the opportunity to build connections with staff and students by participating in the 
full school H[SHULHQFH��,Q�FRQWUDVW��RXU�*UDGH���V�KDG�DOUHDG\�SXW�GRZQ�URRWV�DW�WKH�VFKRRO�EHIRUH�WKH�RQVHW�RI�&29,'��
:H�IHHO�WKDW�we need to make a concerted and intentional effort to connect our students to build a stronger sense of 
belonging and strengthen our school community. 

To create grade-specific activities and school-wide activities designed to maximize capacity to create or strengthen 
student connection to school community. To actively identify and support individuals and groups that feel disconnected 
by connecting them with other students, clubs, or resources that may help them. To create or expand clubs (ie. drama, 
computers, anti-racism). To open and supervise more classrooms at lunch to allow students greater choice in safe and 
supported social spaces. 7R�FUHDWH�DQ�$Q[LHW\�6XSSRUW�*URXS��ZKLFK�LV�QRZ�RSHQ�WR�DOO�VWXGHQWV�DW�IOH[�HYHU\�7XHVGD\�
and is run by our counselling staff. We have created a live calendar for students and have advertised it on posters 
throughout the school which displays the activities and events happening at the school. 

We will measure success by continuing to look at the data from the Grade 10 and Grade 12 Student Learning Surveys 
with specific focus on the questions cited above. We will review yearly to ensure continued growth. We will review and 
analyze the YDI surveys from our Grade ��V from ��21-22 and ��22-23. We will also gather anecdotal student 
feedback throughout the year in various forms LQFOXGLQJ grade-specific activities, school-wide activities, extracurricular 
activities, and participation levels in various clubs and voluntary group activities. 

To build a stronger sense of belonging among students at SRT so that they feel the support of our community as they 
learn, connect, and grow. 

Samuel Robertson Technical Secondary 

Ken Elphick 

Ken Cober

Public Agenda Page 23



SRT is a predominantly white and white-passing school but is growing more diverse. We have had incidents of racism�²�some reported and some 
not�² in the building. We are committed to continuing the momentum that the conversations, listening, and learning we did with 20 visible minority 
students last year carries on this year and into the future. 

Among the things students shared, quotes like the following offer a strong need for this work to continue: 
o �We need staff members who are anti-racist, not just µQRW UDFLVW�¶�
o �We all need to feel safe walking down the halls.�
o �We need to learn more about cultures that GRQ¶W belong to white people.�
o �We need to learn about complete versions of groups, not just the trauma that has happened to them. What about the joy or resilience or 

innovation?�
o �0LQRULW\�VWXGHQWV�GRQ¶W�IHHO�safe or included in our school community.�
o �I wish all the staff members knew how vulnerable and outcast you can feel sometimes.�

In our student learning survey, two questions yielded responses that also speak to the need to continue this important work. To WKH�TXHVWLRQ��³'R�
\RX�UHVSHFW�SHRSOH�ZKR�DUH�GLIIHUHQW�IURP�\RX"´������RI�RXU�*UDGH���V and 79% of our *UDGH���V�UHVSRQGHG�³0RVW�RI�WKH�WLPH´�RU�³$OO�RI�WKH�7LPH´�
which is 9% below the district average for the *rade 10s and 8% below the district average for our *rade 12s. 7R� WKH� TXHVWLRQ�� ³$W� VFKRRO� ,�
DP� learning how to understand and VXSSRUW�KXPDQ�ULJKWV�DQG�GLYHUVLW\"´������RI�*UDGH���V�DQG�����RI�RXU�*UDGH���V�FKRVH�HLWKHU�³DJUHH´�RU�
VWURQJO\�DJUHH�´�ZKLFK�LV����EHORZ�WKH�GLVWULFW�DYHUDJH�IRU�*UDGH���V�DQd 19% below the district average for *rade 12s. 

We will continue to lean on our diversity and equity district leads - Amy Laidlaw and Wayne Chow - for consultation on our next steps as a school 
as well as bring them in to facilitate learning� opportunities at staff meetings and during our late start collaboration mornings. 
We will present student quotes to staff and have them set individual goals�DQG support WKHP�DV�WKH\�PRYH forward with their individual goals��
)inally, we will synthesize and work towards staff�suggested school goals to support our visible minority students. 
WH�ZLOO�Zork with departments to teach a more full version of non-white cultures and help classrooms not just focus on trauma minority groups 
have faced but include joy, brilliance, and perseverance from these groups. 
:H�ZLOO�Freate a more inclusive cultural calendar for SRT and publicize and celebrate more diverse holidays and events. 
:H�ZLOO�Freate a flowchart for how to move through supporting all students when incidents of racism occur. 
We will share the relevant Student Learning Survey results with staff and work with Gepartment Keads to increase the dialogue and education 
about human rights and diversity. 

Based on the learning we did with our students last year, we have some tangible goals for this year that will provide evidence for success moving towards this 
goal. Among them are the following: ProD delivered to staff by equity scan committee as well as Amy and Wayne; department goals as well as individual 
lesson and unit plans that highlight more wide ranging experiences of minority groups besides only trauma; an inclusive cultural calendar created as well as 
displays, class and school wide events, announcements and publicity for these events and holidays; a flowchart for racist incidents will be created and refined, 
and district and staff feedback will be given on the draft of this flowchart; staff will then be trained in using the flowchart to work through problematic incidents. 
The above items are smaller, more targeted points. Additionally, the Student Learning Survey and YDI will provide us with satellite data to compare with the 
data we have gathered and will continue to gather. We will continue to be explicit in the changes we are trying to make, and then follow up with conversations 
around the impact of those changes: this will also be valuable data and feedback for our efforts. Next year, we will compare the Student Learning survey data 
for the two questions listed above as well to track our progress. 

To build on the conversations and learning that came out of listening and learning with a group of our visible minority students to make 
SRT a better place for them. 

Samuel Robertson Technical Secondary School 
Ken Elphick 

Ken Cober 

Public Agenda Page 24



Mental Health & Wellness ± to increase the number of students who indicate that they 
are learning how to care for their mental health. 

Our student learning survey results, as well as our own anecdotal evidence, indicate 
our students do not feel we are doing enough mental health education. This has only 
been amplified during Covid-19. We continue to see an increase in students struggling 
with attendance and we have students regularly self-referring to The Foundry. 

We will focus on our *rade 10 and 12 student learning survey results as well as our 
YDI data. The information collected will shape our planning and decision making as 
we move forward. Please see the appendix for evidence that will be used to document 
our growth in this area. 

A. Goal (one goal per page) -

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan - (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or
structures used)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

It is clear that a multi-faceted approach to mental health education is needed. Our PE 
teachers continue to implement the mental health components of our new curriculum. 
Our counsellors and our Safe and Caring Schools team will continue to monitor 
student attendance and make classroom visits to talk about self-care strategies. 
Further, there is an Integrated Child Youth (ICY) Mental Health hub opening at 
Thomas Haney this year. 

School: Thomas Haney Secondary School 

Principal: Darren Rowell 

Director/Assistant Superintendent: Ken Cober 

Public Agenda Page 25



Self-Directed Learning (SDL) ± Self-directed learning involves students developing the ability to 
manage their own learning. As a school, we will continue to develop essential SDL skills� 
including setting goals, developing a plan, monitoring progress (self-reflection), maintaining 
motivation, and responding to critical feedback (resilience). 

Thomas Haney is founded on a model of Self-Directed Learning (SDL) due to the belief that learning 
flourishes when the student is able to direct learning in a meaningful and engaging manner. The 
following are core guiding principles that create the environment to foster SDL for students: Teacher 
Ddvisory, Ilexible Vcheduling, Sersonalized Srogramming, Follaborative Weaching Hnvironment, 
DXthentic Dssessment, Fontinuous Srogress, and Lnteractive Oearning Hnvironment. 

The following data from the 2021-22 Student Learning Survey (Grade 12s) will be used as baseline 
data. These questions provide insight into key features of Velf-Girected Oearning: students learn best 
when they have choice and agency to direct their own learning; student learn in diverse ways and at 
different rates. 

1. At school, do you get to work on things you are interested in as part of your coursework?
2. At school, are you taught to take ownership or control of your learning?
3. Are you taught to show your learning in different ways?

A. Goal (one goal per page) -

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan - (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or
structures used)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

In providing a student-centred environment, there is a focus on active learning involving reflection, 
imagination� and collaboration. Choice in learning activities allows learning to be tailored in the most 
personal way possible. With students beginning in *rade 8, we will examine approaches to provide 
flexibility in learning and give students the greatest capability to direct their learning and create 
authentic assessment opportunities. As a staff, ZH�work through our guiding principles to allow 
teachers to guide students through collaborative opportunities and experiences available within the 
model and towards high academic expectations. 

School: Thomas Haney Secondary School 

Principal: Darren Rowell 

Director/Assistant Superintendent: Ken Cober 

Public Agenda Page 26



School Community & Culture ± 7o continue to build and foster a positive learning community 
where students are invested and actively engaged in all aspects of school life and to ensure a 
school community grounded in diversity, equity, inclusion� and anti-racism. 

For the past few years, we have not been able to facilitate school-wide activities due to Covid-19 
restrictions. $V�D�UHVXOW��ZH¶YH�REVHUYHG�D�ODFN�RI�FRQQHFWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�VWXGHQWV�DQG�WKHLU�VFKRRO�
community. 

We will continue to utilize the results from the Student Learning Survey (*rades 10 and 12) and the 
YDI (*rade 11) to shape our thinking and planning with a focus on the questions below. We will also 
monitor and track our student involvement and attendance in leadership, clubs, and teams throughout 
the year as well as at our twice weekly Ereakfast Srogram. 
Do you feel welcome at your school? 
Is school a place where you feel you belong? 
At your school, how many adults do you feel care about you? 
At school, have you experienced discrimination on the basis of your sexual orientation or gender 
identity? 

A. Goal (one goal per page) -

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan - (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or
structures used)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Thomas Haney has a wide variety of athletic opportunities and clubs for students to build strong 
connections to the school. Clubs include: Board Games Club, Book Club, Boys Club, Tennis Club, Girls 
Group, Eco Action Club, Baking Club and Random Acts of Kindness Club. There have also been a 
number of initiatives to empower student leadership��LQFOXGLQJ: Student Council, Leadership Program, 
Fruit Salad Organization (FSO), and Student Voice. We will encourage students to participate in our 
school events and traditions (Terry Fox Run, Halloween Week, Hoe Down, BBQs, Spirit Week, Gym 
Riot, LARP, Art Show). 

School: Thomas Haney Secondary School 

Principal: Darren Rowell 

Director/Assistant Superintendent: Ken Cober 

Public Agenda Page 27



At Westview� we want our students to graduate with strong critical-thinking and problem-solving 
skills. We want students to have skills that allow them to create, apply, and conceptualize 
mathematics in real world situations. Our current data from Provincial Numeracy Assessment 
indicates that we are below average in numeracy when comparing our provincial results both locally 
and provincially. Universities, colleges� and employers are looking for a new and different type of 
graduate than WKH\�ZHUH�10 years ago, ZLWK�D�IRFXV�RQ�DSSO\LQJ knowledge to a deeper learning. We 
need to continue to support students and we are dedicated to ensuring that all students become 
increasingly proficient in numeracy. 

Staff connect on Friday Collaboration Days to discuss, explore, create DQG plan activities for cross�
curricular activities in classes other than Path and Qotice, Qame DQG Qurture activities and learnings 
already occurring in areas other than math��for example, Wextiles, Vocial Vtudies, Vhop class, Ioods, 
Yisual Drts���
Offer Ilex DQG Dfter�Vchool sessions for students to work on numeracy skills that will support them in 
the Numeracy Assessment 
Explore resources by Carole Fullerton�DQG�Dpply for JECIC in January to explore numeracy 
resources 

Results from Numeracy Assessment 
Feedback from students on how they feel they are learning about Qumeracy in their different classes 
Feedback from staff 
Classroom observations 
Conversations with parents at PAC meetings�DQG Vtudent�Oed conferences, 
Student Learning Survey Data (parents, students� DQG school staff), YDI Gata 

Numeracy: 
Create spaces and opportunities where students feel brave and safe to take risks when 
practicing numeracy activities�VR�WKH\�GHYHORS�LQWR�confident, numerate citizens. 

Westview Secondary School 

Cathryn Blanco 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 28



It is essential students feel welcome and connected to the culture at WSS. We continue to try to have 
all students connected through sports, clubs� and curricular choices. We seek to embed the First 
Peoples Principles of Learning and Dnti�Uacism in all we do because if our students see themselves in 
our pedagogical practices they are more likely to be successful. In the student learning survey ZKHQ�
DVNHG��³$W�VFKRRO��DUH�\RX�EHLQJ�WDXJKW�DERXW�,QGLJHQRXV�3HRSOHV��)LUVW�1DWLRQV��,QXLW��0HWLV��LQ�
&DQDGD"´ 36% of WSS students responded Most or All of the Time, which is higher than the district 
average� +owever� we recognize we need to strive for 100%. We feel this indicates our practices still 
largely reflect a colonial structure� :e need to do more to ensure our teaching, culture building, 
resources� and structures are more inclusive and reflect the lived experiences of all our learners. 

Offer a variety of clubs DQG sports activities outside of regular school hours (Student Voice, Pride 
etc.) Teacher�Oed Dnti�Uacism working group �participate in District Inquiry, Collaborative Network 
and /XQFK�	�/HDUQV���6WDII�%RRN�&OXE�VWXG\LQJ�³6WUHHW�'DWD´�E\�-DPLOD�'XJDQ�DQG�6KDQH�6DILU 
Teacher participation in Aboriginal Education Cultural Learning projects 
Student Leadership opportunities including Feminist Fight Club, Garden Club, Athletic Leadership, 
6WXGHQW�9RLFH�DW�GLVWULFW�OHYHO��VWXGHQWV�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�³%ODFN�)XWXUHV´�DW�8%& 
Collaboration with ASW and Aboriginal Resource Teacher to support student success/belonging 

Student Learning Survey 
Youth Development Index Data 
Student Voice Feedback 
Street Data (student conversations, teacher/support staff conversations, classroom and school wide 
observations) 
Parent feedback via Student Learning Survey, PAC meetings, conversations 

Community & Connection 
To build a strong community at Westview Secondary that is connected in positive ways, open to 
feedback� and working to a build a culture grounded in equity, inclusion, First Peoples Principles of 
Learning, Dnti-Uacism� and SOGI. 

Westview Secondary School 

Cathryn Blanco 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 29



53% of our students rate their mental health as fair (20%)� poor (21%)� or not sure (12%)��while 34% 
rate their mental health as good (18%)� very good (12%)� or excellent (4%).� This demonstrates to 
us that we need to work around supporting our students in identifying their social emotional and 
mental health needs. Additionally, we need to learn why their mental health is impacted with a 
focus on how generational trauma connected to racism and inequity negatively impact student 
learning and mental health. It is critical that we develop our knowledge through this lens so we can 
better support our students. As educators, it is our responsibility to engage in lifelong learning to 
foster an inclusive and caring school so our students know they are heard, seen, valued� and 
supported. 

Staff participation in Andrea Chatwin ³7HDFKLQJ the Hurt &KLOG´ Trauma Informed Practice 
workshops� school based 3ro�'�DQG school-based FDVH�VWXG\��6WDII�%RRN�&OXE��³6WUHHW�'DWD´�E\�
'XJDQ�DQG�6DILU��Sarticipate in District Inquiry� Follaborative QHtwork and Ounch DQG learns; 
Art teacher leading 3ro-'� ³'HVLJQV for teaching cross curricular: Diversity & Art with a SEL IRFXV�´�
Collaboration Friday topics on supporting student mental health��Connection with AbEd department 
and Dnti�Uacism Kelping teacher to support our learning about the impacts of generational trauma that 
are rooted inequity and racism; share staff learning with PAC 

YDI Data, Student Learning Survey Data, McCreary BC Adolescent Mental Health Survey Data 
Street Data (Student Voice, Classroom observations, conversations with students, teachers, support 
staff, parents/guardians) 
Student attendance data (improved mental health will likely result in better attendance) 

Develop our repertoire of knowledge about how trauma impacts student learning and mental health. 
Develop skills and knowledge in trauma informed approaches and compassionate systems to 
strengthen our ability to develop a learning community for students and adults that is rooted in 
supporting the social emotional and mental health needs of all our learners. 

Westview Secondary School 

Cathryn Blanco 

Cheryl Schwarz

Public Agenda Page 30



SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN 

Albion Elementary 

Tanya Dailey 

A. Goal
Social Emotional Learning� To further support the development of resiliency in all of our students. 

B. Rationale
According to the MDI data from both the 2020/2021 and the 2021/2022 school year and through staff observation, the 
number of referrals to the school counselor and to the school childcare worker IRXQG a high number of students identify 
as being worried and anxious.  In review of just the Grade 7 MDI data there is also a high absence of happiness and 
optimism. 

C. Action Plan (List specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)
-Support the use of SEL programs in the classrooms��Mind up, Zones of Regulation and WITS�
-Intentionally teach self-regulation strategies
-Teach to the student� not the grade �WHDFK�VWXGHQW¶V�ZKHUH�WKH\�DUH�
-Do regular classroom HPRWLRQDO�FKHFN�LQV
-Provide staff with SURIHVVLRQDO�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�UHVRXUFHV�WR�VXSSRUW�WKH�0LQG�8S�SURJUDP��WKH�WRSLF�RI�WUDXPD�DQG�WKH���
*UDQGIDWKHU�7HDFKLQJV
-Have SBT identify the students who require additional adult connections and pair staff up with these students so that�
purposeful connections can be made.
-Enable students to individually regulate in an effective way and recognizH individual sensory needs
-Provide choice for our students in how they demonstrate their learning (hands on learning)
-Educate parents about Mental Wellness (anxiety/resilience)�ZLWK Juest speakers, newsletters, DQG�PAC meeting
-Work closely with the CCW, ASW and school counsellor
-,QFRUSRUDWH�%UDLQ�%UHDNV�DQG�%RG\�%UHDNV�LQWR�WKH�GDLO\�VFKHGXOH
-(QVXUH�WKDW�HDFK�FKLOG¶V�FXOWXUH�LV�UHSUHVHnted in the school and classroom
-Learn about and celebrate the variety of different cultures that make up our school community (for example: participation in�
Diwali, Black History month, Ramadan)
-Provide opportunities for students to connect with one another��buddies, peer leadership, extra-curricular activities�
-3DUWLFLSDWH�LQ�VFKRRO�WHDPV�,QGLJHQRXV�.QRZOHGJH
-&HOHEUDWH�LQGLYLGXDO�GLIIHUHQFH�WKURXJK�WKH�FHOHEUDWLRQ�RI�D�0H�'D\
-Incorporate topics of Giversity, Hquality and Lnclusion into staff and class discussions
-Guest speakers from Family Development Center to come in and work with the students on the topics of anxiety and the�
further development of resiliency skills
-Weekly conversations with SBT to share and discuss students who are struggling emotionally
-Staff JECIC on 6WDUW�+HUH��6WDUW�1RZ

D. Evidence / Data (How will you measure success?)
-Tracking the number of referrals to school counselor and our CCW for supporting students around the topic of anxiety.
-MDI and Student Learning Survey

Tanya Dailey 

Public Agenda Page 31



SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN 

Albion Elementary 

Tanya Dailey 

A. Goal
Literacy� How do we support our students to become better readers and writers? 

B. Rationale
According to our 2021 and 2022 district data and the discussions that occurred at our recent class reviews, there continues to be a high 
percentage of students in our all grades that continue to NYM or MM in their literacy skills.  Also, we have found that the literacy skills of 
many of the 64 new students in Grades 1-7 require additional support. 

C. Action Plan (List specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)
-,Q�class reviewV�RI literacy data of individual students to be shared with CT��Giscussions to occur between the CT and ST to�ensure that 
there are learning plans that focus on those students who are NYM or MM expectations in Reading and/or writing�
-Continue to support teachers in developing strategies to meet the inclusive needs of all their students
-Use of writing rubrics and performance standards to consistently assess students work
-Begin to build program consistency and continuity that specifically addressHV deficits in reading and writing
-Work with AbEd teacher�DQG ASW to further support at�risk students
-Provide the reading intervention program Reading Simplified�for our students who are really at risk and begin to incorporate it into a full-
class delivery model.
-Work with Gistrict Oiteracy helping teacher
-Provide professional development and offer collaboration time for teachers around the topics of reading and writing
-Make literacy fun�ZLWK games, centers, choices, relevant books or activities
-3URYLGH�Oiteracy lunches�to bring awareness to our classroom teachers�DERXW�district programs that are available to help support their 
literacy�programs
-Provide technology for those with written output difficulties and those who need support with reading
-Continue to provide students with lots of choice around reading��expand selections for literature circles�
-Participate in Faye Brownlie¶V three-part intermediate writing series
-Create student writing portfolios
-Continue with IRA and EPRA in fall and spring
-School Growth Plan discussions at staff meetings around inclusive practices of teaching� reading� and writing (share information from�
school team discussions)
-Provide parent education about reading and writing and how to support these at home

D. Evidence / Data (How will you measure success?)
-District Literacy Assessment Data
-Classroom literacy assessments

Tanya Dailey 

Public Agenda Page 32



As a new principal, my goal is to build a plan that is inclusive of the staff and students. It is my sense that staff 
DUH� UHDG\� WR�PHHW� DQG� GLVFXVV� LGHDV� DQG� RSWLRQV� WR�PRYH� IRUZDUG�ZLWK� D� SODQ� WR�ZRUN� RQ� LPSURYLQJ� RXU�
WHDP¶V�literacy practices. They want a blueprint to work from and one that is actionable immediately. 

The portal literacy data will provide the big-picture view of student achievement and act as a starting 
point/baseline from which we move forward. The portal data will also enable us to drill down and get more 
specific information about students who will need further interventions. 

Will meet as a team to implement a school-wide ZULWH to obtain data on our VWXGHQWV¶ writing skills. Our 
librarian has already set up meetings with different grade groups regarding literacy practices. 
Furthermore, ZH¶OO be integrating Indigenous books into the curriculum within each classroom and the 
library as whole as an entry point to enshrine the FPPL into our literacy practices. We have had Faye 
Brownlie work with our teachers during our November Pro�D. :H¶UH also working closely with Denise 
Upton (literacy helping teacher). Teachers have been attending literacy sessions with the school librarian 
such as the Dandelion Readers. For our next Pro�D, we have organized sessions where teachers will be 
sharing their effective literacy practices with the rest of the school. I will also be purchasing books for 
teachers to have in their classes as well as replenishing the supply of newer and more engaging books 
for the library. 

Using the EPRA/IRA as diagnostic tools to help us focus on the different areas of literacy we need to work as a 
whole school. 

Results from the school-wide writes in conjunction with the performance standards data��Once we put 
our plan into action, we can then revisit the portal literacy data to measure our successes and/or to 
work on areas that we still need to get better as a whole school�

Our collective goal is to focus on literacy for the school and to include all learners, specifically ,ndigenous 
students, in terms of both reading and writing. We want to develop a common language for teaching literacy 
and to have consistent assessment practices throughout the grades, especially for writing. 

Alexander Robinson Elementary 

Ramin Mehrassa 

Jovo Bikic

Public Agenda Page 33



Due to constraints of Covid the past two years, our community has not been able to connect with 
each other, both within the school and with the community of ARE as a whole. 

It is time to rebuild our connections� which may have become weakened due to the isolating factors 
of Covid. 

The first thing is to bring VWXGHQWV�DQG�VWDII together and as often as possible. :H¶YH started by 
having in-person staff meetings, school-wide assemblies� and inviting parents to school functions 
again. At Pro�Ds and meetings, ZH¶YH been eating together as a whole in the gym, focusing on 
having time to talk to each other while we eat. We have also started to do activities outside of 
school together again� like evening social gatherings or SOD\LQJ�LQ�WKH�GLVWULFW�YROOH\EDOO�
WRXUQDPHQW��,¶YH�LQWURGXFHG�³VWDII�VKRXW�RXWV´�DV�D�ZD\�WR�KDYH�VWDII�IRFXV�RQ�WKH�SRVLWLYH�DFWLRQV�
RI�RWKHU�VWDII�PHPEHUV�DQG�WR�highlight these at the beginning of every staff meeting. 

I have conducted 15-minute interviews with each member of the staff 
Anecdotally� Continue to check in with staff during the year. Staff has said how they appreciate 
eating together / positive comments about having their voices heard during our school growth 
planning day. Survey that I will send out during the school year to gauge how staff is feeling 
Number of events/activities that will include the whole school. After school activities such community 
dances and family paint nights. After school activities such as community dances�DQG family paint 
nights� 

To build and strengthen the feeling of community at ARE. 

Alexander Robinson Elementary 

Ramin Mehrassa 

Jovo Bikic

Public Agenda Page 34



We want to learn more about embedding Indigenous ways of teaching and learning into our 
practices. We also want to expand our own knowledge about Indigenous culture and history. 

An Indigenous Knowledge Keeper and Storyteller worked with several of our classes in the spring of 
2022. We invited him to continue working with us to the end of September as we prepared for the 
National Day for Truth and Reconciliation Ceremony. This work, as well as lessons from our 
Aboriginal Education Department, inspired our staff to delve further into this curriculum. 

Call to Action Number 63 focuses on developing and implementing Nindergarten to Grade 12 
curriculum about Aboriginal peoples in Canadian history� Our staff felt it was the right time to 
embark on this learning journey together. We have all been deeply impacted by the discovery of so 
many graves of children on the sites of residential schools. 

- Participate in district series "Indigenous Ways of Knowing".
- Support staff with professional development by purchasing a book of their choice from the selection�
offered at the School Growth Planning Day from the Aboriginal library at Westview.
- Staff to access resources available��Aboriginal Support Worker (ASW) and Aboriginal Department�
staff, the Aboriginal library at Westview, and our own librarian to add more books about
Indigenous cultures and history�.
- Plan our National Day for Truth and Reconciliation Feremony in the spring.

-Involvement in planning the National Day for Truth and Reconciliation Ceremony
-Student learning surveys
-Teachers working with ASW's to create land acknowledgements for assemblies and presentations
-Staff participation in district series titled, "Indigenous Ways of Knowing"
-Bulletin boards with indigenous artwork displayed
-Classroom lessons and units on topics about Indigenous cultures and history

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used}

D. Evidence/ Data (how will you measure success?}

School: 
Donna Servant 

Principal: 
Michael Scarcella 

Director/Asst. Superintendent: 

A. Goal (one goal per page}

Public Agenda Page 35



We are aiming to improve reading outcomes for all students, LQFOXGLQJ�comprehension, decoding, 
strategies, and engagement. Ultimately, we want to see a higher number of students reading for 
fun. 

Portal data of performance standards from reports has shifted very little for the past three years. It 
is worth noting that girls continue to have higher reading achievement than boys in grades 2 WR 7. 

Data from the Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) IRXQG�WKDW time spent on video games 
increased while reading for fun (30 minutes or more a day) decreased�EHWZHHQ������DQG�����. 

Our staff are motivated to implement new strategies and professional development opportunities to 
enhance student literacy development. 

- Shifting the.Balance book study with the district��This resource highlights reading instruction and�
strategies that can be applied across the grades�
- Our librarian is exploring e-readers as a viable support for some of our students.
- RISE (Reading Intervention for Students to Excel) program is operating for six-week periods in�
Grade 4/5 classes. This includes�RQH hour per day with WKUHH�WR�IRXU teachers working in one class.
- Literacy prep block for *rade 2/3 and 3/4 classes.
- Expanding our library collection to include more high interest books for boys such as graphic novels.

-Performance standards data for grade groups as well as data targeted for boys.
-MDI data regarding how much children are reading for pleasure.
-School library data about high interest books for boys.

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used}

D. Evidence/ Data (how will you measure success?}

School: 
Donna Servant 

Principal: 
Michael Scarcella 

Director/Asst. Superintendent: 

A. Goal (one goal per page}

Public Agenda Page 36



We notice that students bring many strengths to school. However, we also note that emotional literacy and 
knowledge of how to regulate and manage emotions and relationships continue to need ongoing support and 
teaching. A focus on this area supports every other aspect of school life and is an important part of a thriving 
and functioning community. Our hope is to cultivate a strong sense of self and identity with our students so that 
they can move in the world with a foundation of knowledge about how their bodies respond to stressors and 
how to manage that response in a healthy�DQG�functional way. 

-Staff continue to teach body regulation (including ]ones of Uegulation) as a common language base for students
-Staff continue to focus on relationships, responsibility, and classroom community practices that support these goals�
(class meetings, morning check-ins, positive language)
-Formation of an SEL committee within the school where we can collectively look at where there are gaps and how�
we can fill them (committee consists of admin, school counselor and teachers)
-Our AbEd worker continues to connect with our learners around their sense of self and culture
-Incorporate a sense of self, inclusion, diversity and equity into our assemblies and staff meetings
-Continue to build a system to approach issues that is proactive, responsive� and mindful to the possible underlying�
motivators of behaviour (social emotional tracking)
-EASE coursework within classrooms to address anxiety and emotional dLsregulation
-Sensory pathways within the school with big buddy/little buddy partnerships
-Coffee cart delivery led by students to promote community and leadership
-Focus on common language, strategies and visuals school wide that support our regulation goals (mindful breathing,�
size of the problem, WITS, EASE workshops)
-Leadership club supported by intermediate teachers where students take on responsibilities such as Dssemblies,�
announcements, big buddies� and other activities within the school

-MDI data, specifically the data around social and emotional development in VHYHQ key areas: 
optimism, self-esteem, happiness, empathy, pro�social behavior� and sadness/worries
-Student learning survey
-Anecdotal student and staff feedback
-Reduction in incident forms to the office
-Increase in peaceful play and ability to problem solve

To support student self-regulation and social emotional resiliency at Blue Mountain. Our goal is to continue to 
support this goal through the lens of Indigenous ways of knowing and being. Learning and growing is not linear, 
but is cyclical and happens best in communities of care, compassion and understanding of story and place. 

2022 3 

Blue Mountain 
Julie Clarke 

Jovo Bikic 

Public Agenda Page 37



Teachers have identified gaps in learning for many of our students in the areas of reading, writLQJ, numeracy� and 
problem solving. Our intention is to focus on quality instruction that moves our students forward in their thinking and 
learning in a way that respects their unique learning profiles and needs. Our hope is that learning will be a joyful activity 
where resilience and respect is woven into the experience for all. 

-Formation of a robust literacy committee that utilizes the expertise already in the building
-Teacher workshops with Faye Brownlie to hone and sharpen current practice (both professional development day(s)�
with Faye and participation in district�led workshops)
-Connection and collaboration with Denise Upton (Gistrict Kelping Weacher) to support our literacy goals
-Development of a meaningful reading/buddy system within the school that tracks the reading development of our�
primary readers
-School�wide assessment that drives practice (EPRA and IRA)
-Renewed focus on a School�Wide Write� where teachers collaborate and assess using the performance standards to�
track and support student development and growth
-Consistent use of the performance standards throughout the year with teacher discussion and collaboration
-Participation in a district Numeracy Inquiry offered by our Gistrict Kelping teacher Yas Mann to support numeracy�
development in the intermediate grades
-Workshop with Carole Fullerton to develop and support numeracy skills in both primary and intermediate grades
-Monthly review of School Growth Plan goals and action plans at our staff meetings to ensure we are staying on target�
and keeping our goals the focus in our decision-�m�a�k�i�n�g processes for the school

-Summative performance standard data
-Assessment data such as the EPRA, IRA and district assessment data
-Student engagement and enjoyment of numeracy and literacy activities
-Closed gap on emerging readers
-Confident mathematicians/problem solvers as students move through the grades as noted by teachers and staff

2XU�JRDO�LV�WR continue to support student growth in both literacy and numeracy across the grade levels at Blue 
Mountain. We aim to foster D love of learning, connection� and exploration through meaningful learning activities. 

2022 23 

Blue Mountain 
Julie Clarke 

Jovo Bikic 

Public Agenda Page 38



� Children learn best when they are in a safe learning environment with powerful and positive�adult-
student relationships. There is significant staff expertise in the area of social and emotional�learning
(SEL) and in the use of attachment�aware instructional approaches. We want to focus upon�these
critical understandings to create a vibrant and caring school community to maximize student�
learning.

� Explicit instruction of social, emotional, and regulation skills� DFURVV�WKH�VFKRRO and within classrooms�
�Gevelop�common school language��IRU�H[DPSOH Jrowth Pindset DQG the Sower of YET, :,76� :KDW¶V the
3UREOHP"� How to be�a Gifference Paker).
� Prioritize community building opportunities� such as gatherings, performances, school events, and
POD/classroom activities to celebrate student success and school pride.
� Prioritize instructional opportunities to help students become increasingly respectful, more aware of�personal
differences, and that celebrate all cultural backgrounds within our school community.
� Continue to provide time in meetings, related Pro-D opportunities, and/or readings in this area.

� School survey measures related to connection and belonging.
� Use of relevant Student Learning Survey Information
� Use of relevant MDI and EDI Survey Information

� To continue to create a school community where everyone feels safe and valued. To develop a�
VFKRRO�EXLOW�XSRQ�D�³UHODWLRQVKLS�ILUVW´�SKLORVRSK\�WKDW�HPSKDVL]HV�SRZHUIXO�VWDII-student�
relationships and attachment aware instructional practices.

2022/23 

c̓əsqənelə - Goal 1 Social Responsibility 
Jon Wheatley 

Jovo Bikic 

Public Agenda Page 39



� A vibrant performing arts program helps to create a positive school community and allows many�
children to showcase talents beyond academics.
� Our school name (Fࡑ�ԥsqԥnelԥ) and the school design were created i n consultation with
local Indigenous Elders. Our staff would like to acknowledge this important connection by continuing�
to celebrate ,QGLJHQRXV beliefs and history. There are many performing and fine arts opportunities�
that can be developed using this ,QGLJHQRXV connection.

� Provide students with a wide range of performing arts opportunities� such as school musicals, First�
Nations Sresenters, and other school�wide performances or presentations.

� Continue to invite ,QGLJHQRXV presenters to share their expertise with students (ie Rain Awakens, 3
Crows Productions).

� Continue to prioritize teacher collaboration, planning, and activities that further deepens our collective�
understanding of Indigenous learning and experiences (i.e., Decolonization Group).

� Incorporate ,QGLJHQRXV ways of learning and GRLQJ within our classrooms and school activities�
whenever possible. )RU�H[DPSOH��D�JUHDWHU�LQVWUXFWLRQDO�HPSKDVLV�XSRQ�place-based OHDUQLQJ��
instructional connections with the land/local community, and ,ndigenous community building�
approaches (IRU�H[DPSOH�class circles).

� School survey measures related to connection and belonging.
� Multiple performing and cultural arts opportunities available to students within classrooms and school wide.
� Additional cultural opportunities for students with ancestry
� Students will report a strong sense of belonging and connected to the school on survey measures (i.e.,
MDI, Student Learning Survey)

� To develop a school community with performing and cultural arts opportunities for children to
better learn to love acting, music, song, and dance.

2022/23 

c̓əsqənelə - Goal 2 Performing & Cultural 
Arts Jon Wheatley 

Jovo Bikic 

Public Agenda Page 40



6WXGHQWV¶�UHDGLQJ�VNLOOV�DUH�WKH�VLQJOH�ELJJHVW�LQGLFDWRU�RI�IXWXUH�DFDGHPLF�VXFFHVV��:H�ZDQW�WR�
ensure that all of our students have the best opportunity possible to become independent and fluent 
readers. 
Our year end performance standards data and other class-based literacy assessment data provides 
us information of where students are in their reading and where we need WR�focus extra attention. 

� Ongoing professional development and professional readings to further develop our
collective understandings DQG�VFKRRO�VWUXFWXUHV�DURXQG�KRZ�WR�EHVW�IRVWHU�VWXGHQWV¶�ORYH
of reading and reading acquisition.

� Continued emphasis upon opportunities to promote a love of reading such as Student-lead�
Bookfest, Reading Link Challenge, in-person and virtual author visits, periodic reading�
celebrations and school-wide storytelling collaboration.

� Targeted reading intervention structures for at-risk readers modeled after the Scholastic
³5LVH�,QWHUYHQWLRQ�)UDPHZRUN´�LQ�WKH�,QWHUPHGLDWH�JUDGHV�

� ,QWHQWLRQDO�XVH�RI�SHRSOH�SRZHU�DQG�WLPH�WR�PD[LPL]H�VWXGHQWV¶�GDLO\�UHDGLQJ�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�LQ�WKH�
primary grades (looking for goal of three to fiYH�UHDGLQJ�³KLWV´�D�GD\�IRU�VWXGHQWV��VXFK�DV�OHWWHU�
buddies, reading buddies, Hive Crew Readers, RISE Staff collabRUDWLRQ� etc.

� Staff, student� and community use of library including Strong Start and Sre�school.

� Use of a variety of formative and summative literacy assessments including the EPRA, IRA,�
and Eenchmark used to inform teaching that supports student reading growth. Specific�
measures emphasized to be collaboratively discussed and developed as a school team.

� Year-end reading results from the GLVWULFW¶V BC Performance Standards assessment.
� Circulation and use reports available from the library

To improve VWXGHQWV¶ reading success and progress school wide. 

2022/23 

c̓əsqənelə - Goal 3 Reading 
Jon Wheatley 

Jovo Bikic 

Public Agenda Page 41



Performance standards data indicates approximately 65% of our students are fully meeting 
expectations and about 5% of our students are exceeding in Qumeracy. Staff report that many of our 
students give up and become discouraged when the concepts are challenging DQG�WKH\�FDQ¶W�JHW�LW�
right on their first try. There is a need to create brave spaces where students start exploring and 
playing with numeracy to develop a deeper understanding and confidence. 

- Evaluate and add resources/manipulatives/books for teachers
- Create staff collaboration opportunities
- Explore Math Inquiry and Number Talks
- Explore authentic Indigenous resources
- Applied to have Carole Fullerton come into model lessons and work with classroom teachers
- Explore implementation of school wide math games/Math Day/word problems of the week over our�
daily announcements.

School Performance Standards data 
Student Learning Surveys, Middle Years Development Instrument 
Class review process via check in meetings, ongoing assessment and conferencing 
Street Data (Student Voice, teacher/support staff conversations with students and observations in 
classrooms). 

Numeracy Goal: 
Create learning spaces where all students feel safe and brave to take risks when practicing 
numeracy activities to build confidence and a growth mindset. 

Davie Jones Elementary School 

Jennifer Beveridge 

David Vandergugten

Public Agenda Page 42



7KH�0',�GDWD�VKRZHG�D�ODUJH�SRSXODWLRQ�RI�ERWK�RXU�*UDGH��V�������DQG��V�������GR�QRW�IHHO�WKH\�
are connected to an adult in the building. COVID has definitely impacted the level of connectedness 
that our students have with our staff. It is our responsibility to engage in continual learning to foster a 
diverse and inclusive school in which all members of our learning community have equitable access 
to opportunities, so they feel heard, seen and valued. When this happens, we are honouring our 
DJE Mission Statement, that, ³ZH are committed to nurturing, connections, growth mindsets, curiosity 
DQG�HPSDWK\�OHDGLQJ�WR�D�FRPPXQLW\�RI�OLIHORQJ�OHDUQHUV�´ 

- DJE Social-Emotional Learnings and school Pro-D Fommittee
- Collaboration with SD42 AbEd Department
- Staff engagement in JECIC, SELO, inquiry projects, individual growth plans, focus on Rutdoor�

education for all, nature journaling, and art clubs.
- Staff collaboration learning to develop capacity in Compassionate Systems, anti-racism, Indigenous 

Ways of Knowing, restorative justice, mindfulness, self-regulation, and the Power of Kindness and�
Gratitude. Share staff and student learning at PAC meetings.

Student Learning Survey, Middle Years Development Instrument 
Class review process, ongoing assessment and conferencing 
Street Data (Student Voice, teacher/support staff conversations with students & observations in 
classrooms) 

SEL - Continue to develop our knowledge/skills to strengthen our ability to enhance a learning 
community for children/adults that is rooted in addressing the social emotional needs of all our 
learners. To deepen our practices through a compassionate systems lens so we honour and learn 
from the diversity of our community of learners, particularly our Indigenous and BIPOC members. 

Davie Jones Elementary School 

Jennifer Beveridge 

David Vandergugten

Public Agenda Page 43



The majority of our students are meeting, fully meeting or exceeding expectations in reading and 
writing. However, those that are not�PHHWLQJ appear to be struggling to engage and further develop 
skills to improve fluency and comprehension. Research tells us if we design strategies and 
programming to meet the needs of our learners who are emerging readers and writers, all of our 
students will benefit and become increasingly competent and confident. 

With increased competency and confidence, we are more likely to develop engagement and joy in 
reading in our students. 

��Continue to evaluate our resources/books to ensure all of our students see themselves in our 
materialV��This review will foster engagement, interest and pride with our students. 
Collaborate with the Gistrict Oiteracy Kelping Weacher (outdoor education/nature journaling), Aboriginal 
Vupport Zorker, AbEd Kelping Weacher, and ELL staff. 
��Readapalooza - ongoing exploration of ways to make this program sustainable and effective with 
less staff in WKH�classroom� �JECICs/SD42 Inquiry, staff growth plans�. 
��Outdoor Flassroom (Wayon)��Lncentives for reading, mystery reader/DEAR
��Reading Link/Bookfest. 

Early Primary Reading Assessment/Intermediate Reading Assessment 
Performance Standards 
Student Learning Survey, Middle Years Development Instrument 
Class review process via check in meetings, ongoing assessment and conferencing 
(Student input, teacher/support staff conversations with students and observations in classrooms). 

Literacy 
Increase reading competencies in fluency and comprehension to inspire reading for learning, 
regulation and joy for all students. If we build competency in reading� we hope to foster our 
VWXGHQWV¶�confidence to engage in writing. 

Davie Jones Elementary School 

Jennifer Beveridge 

David Vandergugten

Public Agenda Page 44



SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2022/23

A. Goal (One goal per page)

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Director/Assistant Superintendent:

Principal:

School:

Principal: Board Chairperson:Superintendent: Date:

While the number of students not yet meeting (emerging) in numeracy over the years has been quite low (one or two 
students per grade level), the number of minimally meeting is quite high (up to 20 students at some grade levels).

To begin the exploration of our numeracy practice and results here at EME.

•	 Develop amongst the adults of the community (staff and guardians) an understanding of the difference between 
numeracy and arithmetic
•	 professional conversations
•	 action points at staff meetings
•	 newsletters/portal messages
•	 staff presentations on numeracy instruction at staff meetings

•	 Promote, and support, staff participation in the Primary Math Learning Series Session 2
•	 Purchase resources asked for by staff who have attended the sessions as well for staff that have demonstrated 

(in conversation) a willingness to engage in more numeracy practices.
•	 Provide collaboration time during the day so teachers can observe other teachers in the building teaching numeracy.

Decrease in drill and practice, algorithmic, arithmetic instruction in classrooms
•	 monitoring the centralized data on the portal
•	 feedback from students and families regarding attitudes towards numeracy
•	 use of the Performance Standards Early Primary Reading Assessment Intermediate Reading Assessment 

(Especially year-end assessments)

Edith McDermott Elementary

Alan Millar

David Vandergugten

Public Agenda Page 45



SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2022/23

A. Goal (One goal per page)

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Director/Assistant Superintendent:

Principal:

School:

Principal: Board Chairperson:Superintendent: Date:

Edith McDermott Elementary

Alan Millar

David Vandergugten

Enhance and nurture the sense of belonging and connections with our students of ancestry, especially the students 
of Katzie First Nation. 

In keeping with the findings of the Truth and Reconciliation final report, it continues to be incumbent upon every level of 
education to take the 94 calls to action seriously and implement changes to increase knowledge and understanding amongst 
all Canadians of the legacy of Canadian Policies on Métis, Inuit and Indigenous peoples. In the words of the Honourable Murray 
Sinclair, “It was education that got us here and it will be education that will get us out.”

•	 Continue 25-minute three-week cycles of literacy support form 8:00-8:25 one on one with the first sessions dedicated to our Katzie 
Learners who were not in attendance last year

•	 Continue to build and nurture connections for our Indigenous, Métis and Inuit students through ubiquitous presence throughout the 
school culture/environment

•	 Former Katzie First Nation student regularly attending our assemblies and special functions to drum and sing.
•	 Re-establish student conferences on Katzie
•	 Masks displayed in our front foyer for discussion and inspiration as writing and story prompts
•	 Continue to work with the AbEd department in support of their community connections bringing Elders and other community connections to schools
•	 Ongoing discussions and awareness regarding the story of Indigenous Peoples in Canada at monthly assemblies and in classrooms
•	 First Peoples Principles of Learning an inherent part of planning
•	 Every Thursday remains Orange Shirt Day (stimulates conversation with students and the community)
•	 Supporting and ensuring attendance regardless of barrier (Katzie bus not running)
•	 Ensure access to extra-curricular activities by providing early morning and late afternoon pick up and drop off
•	 Soft start and early entrance into the building as bus drops off very early
•	 Safe places; support room, AbEd room, principal’s office (easily accessible food/snacks)
•	 Pursue and nurture greater relationships with Elders (in residence)
•	 Mandatory, historically accurate Indigenous novel study in Grade 7
•	 Tour of St. Mary’s Residential School for Pro-D on Nov. 10 (many of the Elders of the children from Katzie attended)

Monitor attendance of students of ancestry 
Anecdotal feedback from the community (Particularly Katzie First Nation) 
Student assessment data

Public Agenda Page 46



SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2022/23

A. Goal (One goal per page)

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Director/Assistant Superintendent:

Principal:

School:

Principal: Board Chairperson:Superintendent: Date:

Edith McDermott Elementary

Alan Millar

David Vandergugten

To continue to improve our student reading performance with a particular emphasis on grade 4 and 5 and 6 and 7. 

This is a continuing goal as our school-wide data showed 7% of students were in the not yet meeting category (now known as 
Emerging) compared to 16% from the year before. Previously our goal was to lower that percentage to below 10% NYM.  With 
that goal reached, we now have the goal of continuing to maintain the growth.  Research has shown that individuals who 
struggle with literacy as an adult have difficulty later in life.  It is the moral and ethical imperative of public education to create 
literate citizens. At Edith McDermott, we continue to take that imperative very seriously.

•	 Pervasively utilizing formative assessment
•	 Identify support for classrooms beyond regular support using class reviews
•	 Continuing with a trauma-informed approach throughout the school (Chase the Why/Connection before Correction)
•	 Continuing to utilize the SPIRE support literacy support program
•	 Continue 25-minute, three-week cycles of literacy support from 8-8:25 one on one, with the first sessions dedicated to our 

Katzie Learners who were not in attendance last year (to begin after Dec 22).
•	 Continue to build and nurture connections for our Indigenous, Metis and Innuit students through ubiquitous presence 

throughout the school culture/environment
•	 Utilizing alphabet buddies to promote continued literacy development
•	 Intermediate Benchmarks Program to teachers striving with the Early Primary Reading Assessment adn Intermediate 

Reading Assessment
•	 Provision of collaboration time for teachers to co-plan, calibrate assessments etc.
•	 Provide outside of the school day, time to collaborate with EAs and support team
•	 Create opportunities for vulnerable readers to be in the role of “professional”
•	 Maintain an emphasis on literacy and reading throughout the school culture/environment (announcements, assemblies, 

spirit activities)
•	 Begin utilization of the power of YET (Growth Mindset)

•	 monitoring the centralized student reading data on the portal
•	 feedback from students and families regarding attitudes towards literacy
•	 use of the Performance Standards, Early Primary Reading Assessment, Intermediate Reading Assessment

Public Agenda Page 47



We cultivate an appreciation of people both as unique individuals and as members of families, 
communities, and places. We encourage imagination in teaching and learning as a key to deeper 
understanding, creativity, and responsiveness to place and community. We noticed that after two 
years of &ovid, our school community needs to be strengthened. We plan to go back to a close�
knitted parent community that supports our students and staff. We plan to instill leadership skills in 
our older students. We will participate in school�wide projects that incorporates learning and 
knowledge from our local elders while strengthening our school community. We will give back to 
our community and the natural world. 

-leadership opportunities for our students in Grades 6�WR�9 through an outdoor, fall camp opportunity 
and�mentoring students to be big buddies and support younger students.
-Hearthkeepers meetings (PAC) to be in person twice a month to include as many parents as�
possible/Sarents to come connect socially and attend the school to share expertise with students.
-Staff 3ro-' focused on community building.
-School�wide projects to build community-funded by grants �cedar weaving and rattle making�.
-Reciprocity activities such as pulling invasive species and caring for our locations.

-Collaborative discussion with staff in September and June where we look at our goal and recognize
our strengths and stretches when it comes to building community.
-Collaborative discussion with parents in October and June where we look at our goal and recognize
our strengths and stretches when it comes to building community.
-student journals and responses after completing our school projects that will connect us as a
community.

Our plan is to nurture and develop an inclusive educational community deeply rooted in place. 

Environmental School 

Nicole McKenzie 

Michael Scarcella

Public Agenda Page 48



We believe caring makes a difference at Eric Langton and our focus (motto) is: Take Care of 
Yourself, Take Care of Others and Take Care of This Place. A caring community and connections 
to peers and adults is essential in the well-being and success of students. 
MDI (Winter 2021) 

• GrDGH 4 (81%) and GrDGH 7 (65%) felt strongly that they care about the feelings of others. 
• GrDGH 4 (61%) GrDGH 7 (56%) had a strong sense of belonging with peers. 

Number of Important Adults at School: 
• GrDGH 4: 2+ adults (80%), 1 adult (10%), none (10%) GrDGH 7: 2+ adults (55%), 1 adult (9%), 

none (36%) 
• When students are sad or worried at school Gr 4 (46%), Gr 7 (23%) would seek out an adult. 

���Focus on our motto and what it means to students and staff
���Include student voice in reflecting on school growth planning goals and plans for the year.
���Activities that promote within grade and across grade community building (buddies, reading 
events�with staff, community centres, small group assemblies on targeted school topics)
���Whole school celebrations that are reflective of the student population (assemblies, spirit/theme�
days, special events, spirit wear, PAC events)
���Staff professional development through JECIC, SELO and Indigenous Hducation Jrants.
���Conversations in SBT around connecting students with staff
���Adult check-ins with students.

MDI for *rade 4 and 7 
School�Zide Sre� and Sost�Vurvey on sense of belonging and school culture 
Street Gata� talking to students in leadership and classrooms about their feelings of sense of 
belonging, self-regulation, and their experience as a student at Eric Langton. 

Offer opportunities to focus on student voice and student connection (with each other and adults) to 
enhance their sense of belonging. 

Eric Langton Elementary 

Ms. Brandy McIntyre 

Mr. Michael Scarcella

Public Agenda Page 49



When people are calm and regulated their brains and bodies are at a place where they are able to 
focus on learning, problem solving� and creating. The ability to understand when we are becoming 
d\sregulated, how it feels, and most importantly the strategies and tools that can return us to a 
sense of calm�have a significant impact on our well-being, success, interactions and environment. 
0',�GDWD�IURP�ODVW�\HDU¶V�UHSRUW��:LQWHU������ 

• Ability to consistently self-regulate (short term) GrDGH 4 (51%) and GrDGH 7 (35%) of students. 
• Ability to consistently self-regulate (long term) GrDGH 4 (50%) and GrDGH 7 (18%) of students. 

��Identify school/class SEL needs
��Support student leadership, grade 6/7 Seer Podelling, intentional reteaching of WITS and�
implementation of researched SEL strategies and tools
��6WXGHQW�OHVVRQV�LGHQWLI\LQJ�µIHHOLQJV¶�RI�EHLQJ�G\VUHJXODWHG�DQG�WRROV�WKDt work for each individual
��Identify adults with whom the child connects and can go to when dysregulated
��Identify a known space in the school where the child can go and return to a state of calm.
��Focus on Indigenous Ways of Knowing where, by working collaboratively with Indigenous�
community members, well-being is supported through drumming, singing and storytelling as well as�
connecting with nature and the land.

MDI (January 2023) Grade 4 and 7 
School-wide pre� and post�survey on short- and long-term ability to self-
regulate. 

Intentional teaching and practicing of high impact self-regulation strategies to increase VWXGHQW�
ability to apply them. 

Eric Langton Elementary 

Ms Brandy McIntyre 

Mr. Michael Scarcella 

Public Agenda Page 50



Reading comprehension is critical in students being able to understand their world, connect to stories, build 
their imagination� and creativity. It is a foundation for other curricular areas. The enjoyment of reading 
motivates students to read more, which supports language learning and inspires opportunities to explore self 
and cultural identity. It has been noticed that students are needing more support in their reading skills and 
understanding of story since coming out of the pandemic. 

• Primary students who are proficient or extending in reading comprehension �GrDGH�1 - 42%, GrDGH 2 ± 
63%, GrDGH 3 ± 49%�

• Intermediate students who are proficient or extending in reading comprehension GrDGH 4 - 75%, GrDGH 
5 ± 73%, GrDGH 6 ± 100%� 

��Sharing of high impact reading strategies/interventions currently in use (literature circles, primary literacy�
group meetings, support from helping teacher, intermediate reading interventions)
��Find �just right� texts and complimentary writing/reading opportunities.
��Add digital resources to libraries.
��Ensure consistent reading support for emerging/developing readers
��Purchase books/resources reflective of students in our school and community
��Embed Indigenous Ways of Knowing such as the importance of story and storytelling
��Support SEL through story
��Joyful reading events (school-wide initiatives, reading theme days, buddy reading, read alouds by�
community members)

Create ³NLG-ODQJXDJH´ survey (Moy of reading, seeing themselves as readers) ~ pre� and post�survey Gata 
from Pinistry Sroficiency Vcale� 

Offer more joyful school-wide and classroom reading events in combination with teaching high�Lmpact reading 
strategies to increase reading enjoyment and reading comprehension. 

Eric Langton Elementary 

Ms. Brandy McIntyre 

Mr. Michael Scarcella

Public Agenda Page 51



Our hope is that by being more intentional in the way we recognize and support each individual 
staff and student� we can increase our sense of belonging. 

• We will be applying for a SELO grant to focus on wellness. 
• ExplorH expanding our resources and literature collections to reflect the many different 

cultures represented at Fairview. 
• Create school�wide opportunities to explore the variety of cultures represented at Fairview.
• Participate in a project with SFU that focuses on caring for our land and understanding the 

relationship with it. 
• Giving time to reflect on our practice and how we can be more inclusive in our language 

and resources. 

MDI data regarding connectedness and belonging. 
Student and staff surveys (targeted groups) 

Using the 6Rs from Kirkness and Barnhardt's Indigenous worldviews, we would like to further our 
understanding and recognition for both our individual and collective story (Ueciprocal relationships, 
responsibility through participation, resiliency of ,ndigenous 3eoples, respect for cultural integrity, 
relationship to land and place, relevance to various perspectives). 

Fairview/ Odyssey 

Jenn Gallop 

David Vandergugten

Public Agenda Page 52



As a staff, we would like to shift our focus to student writing. We also want to develop more 
consistency across our school when in comes to assessment practices and how we are addressing 
specific areas in student writing that need to be developed further. 

• Applied for a JECIC to support a school wide write. 
• Bring together grade groups to explore performance standards with student writing 

samples. 
• Improve reading collections to include more diverse titles that kids will connect with. 
• Work with our Pro�D committee to provide workshops and highlight available 

professional development opportunities when it comes to writing. 

Our hope is that by examining our PDUHQW�3ortal data or Power BI tool, we will see a shift in how 
students are progressing in their writing with an upward trend to developing or proficient. 
With the ability to focus on each individual student, we plan to go back to see if there have been any 
shifts in their writing assessment from past years to now. 

We hope to improve our collective understanding of the performance standards in order to target 
areas of focus in our teaching of writing. 

Fairview/Odyssey 

Jenn Gallop 

David Vandergugten

Public Agenda Page 53



District level initiatives for Truth and Reconciliation and Deepening Indigenous Ways of Knowing have been 
a focal point in recent years. With the addition of Standard 9, we would like to explore tangible access points 
for our staff, students, and school community. 

• Growth Plan Day focused on staff exploration of the 97 recommendations and creating a starting point for growth.

• Invited a Katzie elder to do a traditional welcoming on the land at the dykes.
• Analyzed data which emerged from staff collaboration, class reviews and dialogue.
• Staff in depth exploration of the students on the Aboriginal Education case load. We looked at strengths, 

stretches and connections.
• Providing meaningful opportunities for staff collaboration and school growth through professional 

development with key district staff (including anti-racism helping teacher and Aboriginal resource teacher)
• Collaboration with district librarian with access to appropriate resources
• Reaching out to Katzie elders or other Knowledge Holders to come in for a variety of school wide 

presentations.

• Comfort level of staff in developing, creating and sharing resources and class lessons with both Indigenous 
and anti-racism content.

• Students, families and staff will begin to see themselves through mirrors instead of walls as they are
able to connect and relate to resources, materials and lessons.

• Connection with meaningful adults will increase for our Indigenous students as evidenced through the 
Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI), Learning Survey.

• As a school community we will honour the memory of an Indigenous student who touched the hearts
of the Glenwood community by finding a culturally appropriate way to honour her.

Strengthening our Indigenous ways of knowing by examining overarching thematic constructs in the Equity 
and Action Plan, creating opportunities for staff learning, and developing meaningful actionable initiatives as a 
school. 

2022/ 3 

Glenwood Elementary - Goal 1 

Michelle Davis 

Michael Scarcella 

Public Agenda Page 54



This year the school has continued to see a considerable gap in terms of where our students are at. Challenging 

behaviors due to dysregulation and a large spectrum of needs have made it difficult to find a middle ground for 
academically reaching all learners. Building on conversations and growth from last year, our team will continue to look 

at using universal design strategies and working together to identify the floor or access points for all students through 

collaborative conversations. Collaboration among staff is key as we work towards meeting the students where they 

are. This approach will help us create access points for all learners and adjust the floor especially at the intermediate 

level, while simultaneously continuing to create a safe, caring, supported and positive environment for staff, students 

and families. 

Literacy development was one of the main themes that emerged from the Annual Class Review process. Staff will 
work collaboratively with the literacy helping teacher to develop good fit strategies for their class. The RISE reading 
intervention program will target readers significantly below grade level for 6 weeks before moving on to the next group. 
Staff will work collaboratively with the learning services helping teacher to design class wide systems to reach all 
learners using Universal Design for Learning (UDL) strategies. Staff learning at staff meetings will showcase staff 
every month and something they are doing in their classroom. For example, place-based learning (show outdoor 
learning bins and ideas for your class), writing development (show story workshop cart, and literacy discussion with 
literacy helping teacher), numeracy (math stations across the grades), learning through play, collaborative support 
model (how to utilize not just your support teacher or education assistant) etc. 

Resources being used across grades to meet needs of all learners. 
Staff sharing ideas at staff meetings/pro-d days 
Effective use of supports/itinerant staff 
Students will be engaged in good fit activities Intermediate Reading Assessment 
Primary Reading Assessment 
Performance Standards/assessments/report cards 
Student voice using strategies from Shane Safir’s “Street Data” 

Looking at gaps in developmental and social skills due to the social malnourishment caused by the 
pandemic, while identifying lagging skills and creating inventions at the universal and targeted and intensive level. 

2022 23 

Glenwood Elementary - Goal 2 

Michelle Davis 

Michael Scarcella 

Public Agenda Page 55



After reviewing the Performance Standard data from 2021-22, we are continuing with a second year 
of focussing on literacy development for all students. 

Last year we focused on developing a structure and support model for emerging readers at the 
primary grades. However, we continue to see the impact of interrupted learning and support in all 
areas of literacy for primary and intermediate students. 

In addition to continuing to support literacy development for primary students, we also want to 
investigate and implement a structure and support model for students in the intermediate grades. 

· Implement Rise program with primary students; support of district elementary literacy helping teacher 
and district librarian.

· Investigate the Dandelion Launchers/Moon Dog Series with intermediate readers; elementary literacy helping 
teacher supporting.

· Additional reading practice with the support of education assistants and lunch hour supervisors.
· Principal Story Time with primary and intermediate classes.
· Professional development regarding progressing students’ writing skills.
· Protecting learning assistance time provided by support teachers.

To track our progress, we will collect data through: 
· Early Primary Reading Assessment (EPRA)/Intermediate Reading Assessment (IRA)
· Classroom reading assessments
· Surveys regarding students’ enjoyment of reading and writing
· Writing samples
· Performance Standards

Our goal is to foster meaningful literacy engagement so all learners can experience enjoyment, 
progress and personal success. 

Golden Ears Elementary 

Laura Brandon 

Michael Scarcella

Public Agenda Page 56



Our school is growing and so is the diversity of our community. We need to make more effort to build 
our sense of belonging and connection with each other. 

We have families of a variety of sizes, configurations, socio-economic standing, ethnicities, and who 
speak multiple languages at home. Many of our families have members of varying abilities and 
include those that are neurodivergent and neurotypical. 

It is essential that all members of our community feel safe, have a voice and are heard by others. It 
is imperative that we learn about and celebrate our diversity. 

· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 
· 

Make the First Peoples Principles of Learning and Reconciliation explicit in our teaching. 
Engage in multi-grade and school-wide activities and celebrations. 
Learning activities regarding a variety of cultural observances (focusing on music, food and art) 
Welcome new families and create a “Community Group” to foster connection with parents. 
Build community connections with members of Maple Ridge (pen pals, senior citizens) 
English language support to assist with communication with families. 
Professional development about Indigenous perspectives, anti-racism and inclusionary practices. 

To track our progress, we will collect data through: 
· Survey school community members on their sense of belonging in our school.
· Track involvement and facilitation of cultural events in our school.
· Increase in parent involvement in our school.
· Staff professional development on Indigenous perspectives, anti-racism and inclusion.
· Tracking involvement with members of the wider Maple Ridge community.

Building a community where all learners, families and staff feel a sense of belonging, inclusion, and 
connection. Where the diversity of our school community is valued and respected by all. 

Golden Ears Elementary 

Laura Brandon 

Michael Scarcella 

Public Agenda Page 57



As our students experienced an erratic pattern of service delivery over the course of the pandemic, 
we are focused on making up for lost time. By fostering a positive relationship with reading and 
comprehension, we will increase competency in literacy and improve specific skills in reading and 
writing. 

- Targeting students who missed instruction and learning during the pandemic
- Using Pernille Ripp’s “Who You Are as a Reader” to set personalized learning goals
- Drop Everything and Read (DEAR)
- PA Trivia from popular books developed in conjunction with students and teachers
- Professional development with elementary literacy helping teacher
- Reading-oriented activities: Flashlight reading, birthday books, admin reading aloud in 

classrooms
- Prioritize early learning and at-risk students

- Performance Standards quantifying improving trends over successive reporting periods over three
years

- “Who You Are as a Reader” interview data to look for trends in student responses and identify areas
to target.

- EPRA and IRA (reading assessment data)

Develop positive attitudes toward literacy and increase competence through school—wide literacy 
activities. 

Hammond Elementary 

Adam Stanley 

David Vandergugten

Public Agenda Page 58



We plan to address social emotional learning (SEL) by providing diverse opportunities for student 
involvement throughout our school community. In addition to regular offerings, we will create or 
engage in extra-curricular fine arts and game-based activities to increase overall wellness and 
SEL awareness in our school for both staff and students. 

- ACT Theatre Program
- Music played over the PA during announcements
- Musical components added to assemblies
- Provide mental health components to professional development
- Drop everything and draw
- Work with community connections and healthy living program manager to provide after school programs: Coding, 

Visual Arts
- Wellness Wednesdays facilitated by admin
- Culture days

- Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) well-being index data
- Ministry learning survey data
- Commencement of Art Club
- Commencement of Dungeons and Dragons Club
- Connections to Indigenous art projects
- Creation of new Diversity Club led by our counsellor
- Regular staff feedback sessions and review at next growth planning session

Grow resilience and wellness through participation in the Fine Arts and extra-curricular clubs and 
groups. Create capacity for problem solving and critical thinking through creativity and team building. 

Hammond Elementary 

Adam Stanley 

David Vandergugten 

Public Agenda Page 59



Of the total population of 483 students we have 91 English Language Learner (ELL)  students, 11 of which are Exceptional English 
Language Learners (EELL) and 49 students with Aboriginal ancestry. We also have 88 students with a ministry designation and 
approximately 9.3% (approximately 41) of our students are living in poverty. 

MDI Grade 4 results: 
65% of students report having a positive relationship with an adult compared to the district average which is closer to 75%. 
59% of students report feeling connected and valued at HHE compared to over 70% district wide. 

MDI Grade 7 results: 
56% of students report having a positive relationship with an adult at school while the district average is over 60% 
33% of students report feeling connected and valued at HHE. Conversely, 67% do not feel strongly connected and valued at the school. 

-continue to run clubs at lunch (run by teachers/staff for a variety of grades: Lego, Chess, Puzzles, Coding, Crib/cards, Art/Drawing, Science, Knitting/origami, Gym) 

-develop multi-level afternoon activities ex. Applied Design Skills and Technology (ADST) 
-outdoor program/gardening: revamp the courtyard 

-student leadership group and volunteer opportunities/activities for senior students

-Lunch and Learn Series on Equity and Diversity with the district helping teacher  

-pro d on Equity and Diversity presented by the district helping teacher

-recognize various cultural celebrations such as Dwali, Ramadan, Black History Month, Asian History month, Orange Shirt Day 

-plan an Identity Day school wide 

-continue breakfast and lunch programs, continue to provide breakfast in Gr. 6/7 classrooms and add Gr. 5/6 classroom 

-provide opportunities for students to give back to the community (working with RCMP Constable Britteny George on community projects) 

-lunchtime staff and student activities 

-bring back the HHE Song 

Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data 
Number of students participating in clubs, celebrations, activities Staff observation 

To strengthen our students' sense of belonging by recognizing and celebrating the various cultures and backgrounds 
represented at our school regularly and focusing on adult/student connections. 

2022 23 

Harry Hooge Elementary 

Nicole Neggers 

Michael Scarcella 

Public Agenda Page 60



-22% (12 students) of our current Grade 2s are Not Yet Meeting (NYM) expectations and 39% (22 
students) are Meeting Expectations in reading strategies
-18% (11 students) of our current Grade 3s are NYM expectations and 21% (13 students) are 
Meeting Expectations in reading strategies
-16% (10 students) of our current Grade 3s are NYM expectations in writing and 27% (17 students) 
are Meeting Expectations in writing
-teacher observation: students' are weak in phonemic and phonological awareness

-Reading intervention groups and station teaching, coordinate with English Language 
Learners helping teacher, support and teacher librarian
-Targeting skills based on assessments
-Target Grade 3 students first based on report card data
-Focus on phonemic and phonological awareness using programs such as Heggerty
-Involve our district literacy helping teacher

Assessments (pre and post intervention and at regular intervals to inform teaching) 

Report Card Performance Standard Data June 2023 

To continue to improve literacy development with a focus on targeted instruction in phonemic and 
phonological awareness as part of a balanced literacy program. 

Harry Hooge 

Nicole Neggers 

Michael Scarcella

Public Agenda Page 61



Last year 44% of our grade 1-6 students were not yet meeting expectations or minimally meeting expectations in reading. 

11% of our student population are not yet meeting grade level expectations in reading. 

Our students perform best in the sub-category of strategies, comprehension, and response and analysis. Our students 

need to be able to decode text, understand what they have read, and be able to respond to text, orally and in writing. 

We wonder…Why our data seems higher than what we see in our classroom assessments? 

Is our assessment aligned? 

How can we better engage our more reluctant readers? 

How can we better engage our English Language Learners in reading? 

How can we support students to make deeper connections and respond to what they have read, orally and in writing? 

How might we inspire joy and an intrinsic desire for learning in our students? 

What are some evidence-based structures and activities that support the development of literacy? 

Work with our Literacy Helping Teacher to coordinate School based professional development, in-class 
opportunities to collaborate, and develop plans for individual students. 

• Pro-D committee to plan literacy professional development throughout the school year

• Continue to purchase high interest and inclusive resources

• Literacy inquiry about culturally responsive teaching

• Use of reading conferencing strategies and the Joyful Reading Program

• Share reading/literacy tips with parents in W.A.A.G.

• Working groups around aligning assessment with Performance Standards

-Report card data

-Student survey results

-Classroom-based formative assessments

-Anecdotal evidence, observations, and self-reports

To improve students' literacy, specifically their ability to comprehend, analyze, and respond to fiction and non-fiction text. 

Highland Park Elementary 

Jennifer Walker 

David Vandergugten 

Public Agenda Page 62



Highland Park has a very diverse population. There are 97 English Language Learner students, 20 students with 
Aboriginal ancestry, and many families who depend on the school and other programs for food security. Our Highland 
Park families speak over 25 different languages. We know that student belonging at school has been shown to foster 
school success, and students with a sense of belonging are less likely to engage in high-risk behaviour. Our current 
Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data shows that a large percentage of our students do not have a high 
sense of school belonging (44% in Grade 4, 65% in Grade 7). 
We wonder: how can we make sure that all cultures are authentically represented in our school? 
What can we do to ensure we are culturally responsive educators? 
Whose voices are missing in our discussions and decision making? 
What are the barriers to participation in school activities? 
How can we engage student and parent voice and how can we effectively communicate with our families? 
What can we do to foster increased sense of school belonging for our students as they progress through the grades? 

• Continue school-based anti-racism committee and administration participation in anti-racism
discussions at the superintendent meetings.

• Participating in SEY2KT to be able to better connect families of preschool aged children (0-5) with the school.
Also work with our PAC to communicate in different languages.

• School recognition program - E.A.G.L.E.S. to build pride in our community.

• Continue to incorporate diverse texts into library, classrooms, book room.

• Sharing of culturally responsive teaching strategies at staff meetings.

We will collect qualitative data from our MDI data, our parent engagement survey, and the Provincial Student Learning 
Survey. We will also collect qualitative data based on our anecdotal observations and personal stories and experiences. 

To create an inclusive and welcoming school community where students, staff, and families feel that they belong, that 

their voice is heard, and their diversity is celebrated. 

Highland Park Elementary 

Jennifer Walker 

David Vandergugten 

Public Agenda Page 63



Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) results from year to year have shown our students don't all have a high 
degree of connectedness to the adults in the building. While it is the majority (63% of both Grade 4 and Grade 7 
students report a high degree of connectedness last year), this still means ~40% are disconnected to some degree. MDI 
results also for grades 4 and 7 show that only ~30% of our students are thriving in the "Well Being Index". Further, staff 
discussions at recent staff meetings have highlighted the pride staff has for school-based activities and structures that 
build connections and the desire to come up with more of these ideas. Also, the school is continuing with its diversity 
club started last year by our SOGI leads and starting a "student council" whose goal is to increase student-led activities 
that raise morale and build connections. Thus, this current goal, which is similar to previous years, is still relevant to the 
school for this year. 

- "School Stars" given to new staff/students which celebrate all individuals in the school

- School clubs that support diversity and tolerance

- Developing a student council to create student-led opportunities for connection

- Staff activities that welcome new staff and promote a culture of collaboration

- Support structures that highlight at risk students in academic / social areas and create strategies to build more 
connections (10 by 5, special helper, etc.)

- Whole school activities that build connections (monthly assemblies, Friday Dance Party, monthly themes, etc.)
- Increasing awareness of the reading content in our classroom libraries and school library that shows marginalized 

ethnic, racial, religious, or gender groups

- Continue to grow our social emotional learning (SEL) reading library and promote it with new staff members
- Kanaka gear for all new students and staff (t-shirts that proudly promote the school and it's motto "Together We 

Are Better")

- MDI results

- Early Years Development Instrument (EDI) results

- Anecdotal surveys to staff / parents / students

- School learning survey results

- Informal audit of libraries in the building

To build connections between members of the Kanaka community, focusing on creating an inclusive, welcoming 
environment where all learners can reach their full potential. 

Kanaka Creek Elementary 

Chad Raible 

Jovo Bikic

Public Agenda Page 64



An inventory of our most recent district performance standards assessments (2020-2021) shows our Indigenous and 
ministry identified students (not including giftedness) are over represented in the "not yet meeting" portions of our writing, 
reading, and numeracy assessments. Our teachers have noticed during the pandemic that the academic needs of our 
students were increasing. Further, our support team has noted an increase in the social and emotional needs all of our 
students are exhibiting. 
Thus, the school team has opted to look at a goal that targets our students who are marginalized either academically or 
socially. Through district-based and school-based structures such as SBT, Aboriginal support worker (ASW) support, 
counseling time, and district literacy support, our school team will endeavor to provide interventions that provide a lasting 
impact to our students. 

- Staff professional development that focuses on strategies to support all students, especially marginalized 

students (trauma informed, strategies for anxiety, brain research and attachment theory)

- Targeted ASW support for our Aboriginal students

- Identification and targeted social support by our child care workers (CCW)
- Whole class social lessons by school counselor

- Targeted individual support by school counsellor

- Identification through class reviews of academically/ socially vulnerable students and utilization of school 
based team to identify and create plans.

- Use of district literacy intervention plan for struggling readers/ writers.

- Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) results

- Early Years Development Instrument (EDI) results

- Year-end performance standards data

- ASW, CCW, counseling, and English Language Learner reports

- Staff surveys

To see increased academic and social successes in our most marginalized students. 

Kanaka Creek Elementary 

Chad Raible 

Jovo Bikic

Public Agenda Page 65



Our staff are focussed on equity, inclusion, and decolonization to improve our practice and ensure all 
students see themselves reflected in their learning. For the last four years we have had a social 
emotional learning (SEL) goal and we see this year as an opportunity to weave our SEL goal with 
our Indigenous learning. The book Be a Good Ancestor is a perfect fit as it teaches students to take 
care of the land, their environment, their family and their community. We will use the lessons from 
this book to create opportunities for students to practice pro-social behaviour. 

All staff participated in the growth planning day centered on equity and Indigenous Ways of 
Knowing. Twelve staff are participating in a JECIC learning team focussed on equity and reaching 
children at the margins. 
A portion of each staff meeting has been dedicated to learning about equity and decolonization 
Every teacher has received the book Be a Good Ancestor and will each choose a page for a class 
project teaching pro-social behaviour. 
In alignment with Earth Day, we will host Be a Good Ancestor week in April to showcase learning. 

We will use the MDI data to measure students self reports of pro-social behaviour. 
We will gather ‘street data’ by paying attention to our students’ stories, reflections, writings, and art 
that showcase their work becoming good ancestors. 
We will complete class wide and school wide projects to showcase pro-social behaviour and share 
this learning with our school and parent community. 

At Laity View Elementary, we hope to increase our students pro-social behaviour through the teaching of 
Indigenous ways of knowing. Our Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data indicates that 51% of 
our students are thriving in pro-social behaviour. We hope to increase this by at least 20%. To accomplish 
this goal, we are centering our learning around the book Be a Good Ancestor.

Laity View Elementary 

Kristi Blakeway 

Michael Scarcella

November 9, 2022 Kristi Blakeway 
Public Agenda Page 66



At Laity View Elementary we recognize that our students are stronger readers than writers. Our 
assessment data indicates that approximately 12% of students in grades K-7 are not yet meeting 
expectations in writing. In particular, students struggle with writing conventions. For the last four 
years, we have focused school wide efforts on reading, and we now recognize it is time to change 
our focus to a school wide goal on writing, where we can create school wide opportunities for 
students to communicate their ideas in writing. We met with teachers and have created a yearlong 
plan to achieve this goal. 

In November and December, we will host weekly school wide zoom sessions. In November, we will 
show photos and have students write short memes. In December, we will share the first line of a story 
and invite students to create the rest. In January, we will start writing school wide books where each 
division writes one line and then rotates the book to the next class to build the story. We will teach 
how to write stories while helping students with writing conventions. In the spring we will develop a 
school wide newspaper where each division writes one section. Teachers have also created a list of 
school wide contests and events that encourage all students to write daily. 

We will share student writing on bulletin boards, through our school newsletter and social media 
page, and we will work towards school wide compositions in the spring including a school wide 
book and newspaper. 
We will use assessment data from each formal reporting period to monitor student progress in writing. 

At Laity View Elementary, our goal is to help all students develop a love of writing. By encouraging all 
students to participate in school wide writing activities throughout the year, we hope to reduce the 
number of students who are not yet meeting expectations in writing from 12% of students to 6%. 

Laity View Elementary 

Kristi Blakeway 

Michael Scarcella 

November 9, 2022 Kristi Blakeway 
Public Agenda Page 67



Maple Ridge Elementary 

Barbara MacKinnon 

David Vandergugten 

To create a stronger writing culture in the school community. Our goal is to help students build and demonstrate a 

growth mindset and to increase confidence, excitement, stamina, resilience, and willingness to “dig into” their writing. 

Data based on BC Performance Standards indicate that there is a slight drop in the percentage of students who meet or exceed 
grade level expectations in writing. Anecdotally, teachers notice an overall reluctance among learners toward writing. Some 
students are hesitant to begin written tasks and seem to give up easily. Their writing attempts are perfunctory and limited to 
superficial uses of language, sidestepping the artistic, poetic, comic and theatrical uses of language that are possible. Students 
seem to be dependent on using digital writing tools (spellcheck, auto-correct) and/or often rely on adult assistance. 

-Summative reporting data based on BC Performance Standards

-Student Learning Survey (SLS), Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI)

-Street data (Shane Safir and Jamila Dugan) — teacher/support staff conversations with students, observations in

classrooms and anecdotal records)

-Classroom based formative assessment including student self-assessment

-Evaluate and extend professional resources about writing and growth mindset

-School based Literacy Inquiry Proposal to work with Faye Brownlie (approved)

-District helping teacher support and resources for student self-assessment and goal setting

-Co-teaching and collaboration with librarian and prep teachers as well as teachers observing in each other’s 
classrooms. Sharing strategies at staff meetings.

-Showcasing student writing, e.g., at assemblies, on bulletin boards, during morning announcements, Writing 
Blasts and school newsletters

-Storytelling collaboration with Aboriginal Education Department

Public Agenda Page 68



-Building attachment within the greater school community through assemblies, buddies, extracurricular events, morning 

announcements and sports

-School-Based Professional Development – Monique Gray Smith’s online course, “Ripples of Resiliency”

-Staff participation in district Deepening Indigenous Ways of Knowing (DIWK) sessions with Leyton Schnellert

-School child care worker (CCW) – collaborating with teachers, facilitating in-class lessons, and small group work to help 

students develop a toolkit of strategies for developing resilience.

-School counsellor working with students to develop emotional literacy – naming and understanding feelings such as fear, 

anxiety, anger, sadness, guilt, embarrassment, etc.

-School-wide use of the WITS program for independent problem solving

A commonly used definition for resilience is “the ability to bounce back from adversity.” Data from the Middle 

Years Development Instrument (MDI), the Student Learning Survey (SLS), and anecdotal reports from staff 

indicate that this is an area for growth in our learning community. Supporting resilience in our learners promotes 

well-being, health, and academic achievement. We recognize that a sense of belonging and security are 

foundational for resilience in learning, at school, and in life. As part of raising awareness and providing explicit 

teaching about resilience, we look to Indigenous teachings, as well as to the diverse cultures and communities 

which represent our students. 

To help students understand challenging emotions and explore ways to develop resilience. 

-Using “Street Data” (Safir and Dugan) that includes observation and anecdotal reports by staff, specifically about 
language students use to describe emotions and how they handle everyday stressors to persevere when they are 
learning new things.

-ASW and CCW reports

-SLS Data, e.g., from responses to, “When I am facing difficult tasks, I keep trying until I succeed,” or “I believe I can 

be successful in almost anything I set my mind to.”

-Optimism scales on the MDI

David Vandergugten 

Barbara MacKinnon 

Maple Ridge Elementary 

Public Agenda Page 69



At PME, we want to create a positive community for staff, students, and families. 
We want to ensure the school is inclusive and celebrates diversity. 
We want to honour and include all and we need to build this value in our students. 
We believe that staff and student well-being is needed to focus on teaching and learning (Maslow’s 
Hierarchy of Needs). 

Teach social emotional learning; focus on kindness, compassion and inclusivity. 
Embed social emotional learning (SEL), Indigenous Ways of Knowing, and multicultural 
understanding into literacy and other curricular areas. School-wide events and assemblies to 
celebrate diversity; multicultural week, display boards for school wide projects (Bricks for Belonging); 
Opportunities for students and staff to share strengths through leadership; Wellness Wednesdays; 
JECICs; book talks and clubs; SELO grant; share SEL lesson; staff professional-development on 
trauma informed practice and racial equity and inclusion. 

Student and staff stories: more positive talk; students and staff see themselves in their community 
(MDI survey and satisfaction survey). Fewer interventions needed by support staff, principal/vice-
principal, and parents. Fewer office referrals. Happy students and happy staff. A sense of belonging 
among the whole community. Kind interactions between students. Kids standing up for kids. Kids 
diffusing conflict situations. There is an understanding that fair is not equal. Increase ability to focus 
on academic learning. Create a culture and climate where it's safe to take risks, make mistakes, and 
try new things. 

School Culture and Community Building: 
How do we create a welcoming, safe, and caring community that values diversity and supports staff 
and student well-being? 

Ecole Pitt Meadows Elementary 

Jenn Simon 

David Vandergugten

Public Agenda Page 70



Being literate is foundational to all learning; we want to support all students to become engaged, 
curious, and critical readers, communicators (listeners, speakers, writers), and learners. 
Following the pandemic, there is a noticeable decline in resiliency and independence, and an 
increase in student anxiety. Technology has opened doors, but also created new challenges. Many 
students are experiencing challenges with foundational skills such as reading, writing, numeracy, 
fine motor, and self-regulation. We believe literacy inspires opportunities to explore cultural and 
personal identity through stories. We recognize that it’s important to focus on oral language, reading 
comprehension, decoding/phonemic/ phonological awareness, fluency, vocabulary/word study, 
media literacy, and reading and writing for authentic purposes. 

- Explore ways to make learning cross-curricular, authentic, experiential;
- Make reading opportunities accessible, engaging and not stressful (Universal Design for Learning);
- Prioritize early intervention and ensure consistent support for students emerging in reading;
- Ensure alignment between resources and goals: collaborative planning and check-ins; 

opportunities to co-teach with district helping teachers, and others;
- Build a home and school connection through regular opportunities for families to participate

in literacy opportunities. Find ways to celebrate student growth throughout the year.

Class reviews; use of performance standards rubrics; staff and student surveys (MDI); 
student engagement and attitudes towards literacy activities; reading verbal and non-verbal 
responses.
In class write: compare term 1 writing sample with term 3 writing sample; find diverse ways to 
celebrate learning (bulletin boards, newsletters, assemblies, share stories, and winter and spring 
Kaleidoscope learning showcase). 

Literacy and Learning: 
How do we humanize learning to ensure a genuine capacity for literacy development in all learners? 
How do we ensure all students are confident and capable readers who enjoy reading and see 
themselves as writers? 

Ecole Pitt Meadows Elementary 

Jenn Simon 

David Vandergugten

Public Agenda Page 71



Positive mental health impacts how we think, what we feel, how we handle stress, and how we relate 
to others and make choices. By building knowledge and skills around well-being, students will be 
better equipped to handle the many challenges they face at school. This connects with Indigenous 
Learning as seen in the principle of learning that suggests that learning supports the well-being of 
the self, the community, the land, the spirits, and the ancestors. 

Staff and students will learn about the Zones of Regulation (naming our emotions and zones), and will 
explore activities related to the zones of regulation. To assist with self-regulation, staff will explore the 
focused attention practices from our school counsellor, emotional ABC's, overcoming obstacles, and 
Project 11, as we weave in Indigenous Ways of Knowing including the principle of learning that states, 
"learning ultimately supports the well-being of the self, the community, the land, the spirits, and the 
ancestors." Our PEAK program consisting of multi-aged students from kindergarten to Grade 7. Our peak 
groups will meet twice a month to focus on the above SEL and related activities. We will have the Family 
Education Centre come in to do presentations in class on empathy, resilience, conflict resolution. 

-Comparing the 2023 WCE MDI data of ‘Happiness’, ‘Self Esteem’ and percentage of students who are
‘Thriving’ with last year’s 2022 WCE MDI data and the district average.

-Anecdotal surveys with staff, students and parents.

Social Emotional Learning (SEL) - to help students build knowledge and skills to understand and 
improve their well-being. 

Webster’s Corners Elementary 

Laureen Hickey 

Jovo Bikic

Public Agenda Page 72



- Early Primary Reading Assessment (EPRA) data
- Intermediate Reading Assessment (IRA) data
- Student self reflections
- Teacher observational data

The Literacy Committee at WCE has reviewed the research from Faye Brownlie that states that 
engagement in reading in a fun and interactive way is correlated with literacy and academic 
success. Reviewing our year-end performance standards data and the results from doing the Early 
Primary Reading Assessment and the Intermediate Reading Assessment, we have students we 
need to focus on to support further development of their literacy skills. 

This year, the WCE Literacy Committee is focusing on engaging students in reading. The 
committee has compiled interesting, fun and engaging activities for our students including fort 
reading, read with a pet, using technology to engage in reading, flashlight reading, buddy reading 
and ‘Guess Who’s Reading at WCE?’. The staff would like to connect Indigenous Learning, 
namely the principle of learning that states that learning takes patience and time. 

- 

To improve student literacy, focusing on the enjoyment of reading. The goal is to build engagement, 
motivation and joy in reading, using ideas from our librarian, WCE Literacy Committee, district 
helping teacher for elementary literacy and current literacy research. 

Webster’s Corners Elementary 

Laureen Hickey 

Jovo Bikic

Public Agenda Page 73



While we have seen a significant improvement in our primary students' literacy success, we still have more 
work to do. We see from reviewing our performance standards year end data that we have students 
emerging in literacy that we want to further support in building  their literacy skills. Ideally, we would like to 
ensure all our students currently achieving in the emerging stage move ahead to the developing stage. 

All our primary teachers have been trained by the district elementary literacy helping teacher and are using 
the Reading Simplified strategy in their daily literacy learning. We have also purchased all of Adrienne 
Gear's Reading Power series. Teachers integrate strategies from this text in their planning and teaching. 
We will continue to take advantage of the mentoring and guidance provided by our district helping teacher. 
Our teacher librarian has trained all our teachers in the use of the Spark literacy resources and site licenses 
that support literacy. Our support teachers and admin are also meeting with reading groups three times per 
week to give students additional reading time and guidance. 

We will use our year-end reporting summary to assess how successful we have been in moving students 
along in their literacy development. We will also review our provincial learning surveys and The Early Years 
Development Instrument (EDI) and The Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) for students' 
responses to literacy tasks and their enjoyment of reading. 

1. To identify and focus on improving reading comprehension (meaning making) in all our students with an
emphasis on our emerging and developing primary students in reading strategies. Specifically, we would like
to emphasize the "comprehend and connect" curricular areas to support our students' ability to make meaning
from texts.

Whonnock Elementary 

Wes Reamsbottom 

Jovo Bikic

Public Agenda Page 74



Students need as many opportunities to connect and learn from each other as possible. We believe 
strongly in the opportunities place-based learning and nature offer to help build peer-to-peer 
support and connections. Whonnock is blessed with many wonderful outdoor spaces and we 
believe these spaces can be used to enhance connection between students and our connection to 
the land in general. 

Most of our classes take advantage of our on-site and close-by forests and lake to enhance their 
connection to nature. We will continue to have classes visit Whonnock Lake as well as the three 
forests on school property so that they engage with the place-based curriculum and build 
connections between students. We will access our Aboriginal support teacher and our Aboriginal 
support worker to guide us in enhancing our recognition of the role of Indigenous Knowledge. We 
have received resource recommendations and a staff learning session on ways to integrate place-
based curriculum cooperatively with buddy classes. 

We will use locally developed student surveys, the provincial learning survey, and The Early Years 
Development Instrument (EDI) and The Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data to 
inform our understanding of the effectiveness of our plan. 

2. Continue to use our outdoor spaces to enhance a sense of belonging by addressing social 
emotional needs through fostering student-to-teacher and student-to-student connectedness.

Whonnock Elementary 

Wes Reamsbottom 

Jovo Bikic

Public Agenda Page 75



We want students to feel safe and valued with a reservoir of tools and strategies to gain self-regulation of their emotions 
and behaviour. 

Some students’ anxiety is hampering their abilities to self-regulate and to maintain focus and resiliency. Too often 
students lack skills to attend to lessons or to feel settled in the classroom due to their feelings of unease, which can 
disrupt the learning of all. We want to explore ways in which we can make the students feel valued but can also build 
on their resiliency skills to navigate working more effectively in their classrooms. 

• Explore programs that can be used school-wide to manage anxious feelings 

• Implement and teach Zones of Regulation (primary) and MindUp (intermediate) across all grades consistently 
throughout the school (or another program)

• Directly teach students perseverance and resiliency strategies, working towards a gradual release of responsibility

• Implement school-wide multiage activities to provide student mentorship and leadership opportunities – Mindful 
Mondays, Fun Fridays, buddies

• Incorporate topics of self-care, diversity, equity, inclusion, and Indigenous knowledge into our staff meetings

• Incorporate aspects of self-regulation, diversity, inclusion, and Indigenous knowledge into monthly assemblies

• Provide opportunities for students to explore and showcase their identity/stories – Identity Day

• Provide professional development and resources to support social emotional learning (SEL) in our classrooms

• Participate in Everyday Anxiety Strategies for Educators (EASE) training through Healthy Minds BC

• Learn about and celebrate the variety of different cultures that make up our school community

• Purchase additional tools that support all students, such as wiggle seats, slam balls, pedals, standing desks, etc.

• MDI data

• Student Learning Survey information

• Beginning/end of year student self-assessment of self-regulation and anxiety

• Beginning/end of year staff reflection and tracking (teacher observations, more settled students)

School: Yennadon Elementary 

Principal: Lisa Lawrance 

Director/Assistant Superintendent: Jovo Bikic 

A. SEL Goal (one goal per page)

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Public Agenda Page 76



We want to improve our literacy practice with a focus on implementing common assessment and intervention tools to 
support not just our struggling readers and writers, but all students. 

We are finding that, post COVID, many students, especially in the primary grades, are struggling with their literacy, both 
in reading and written output. In order to support these students in a cohesive manner, a common assessment tool and 
common intervention strategies are needed. Such an approach would support both the students and the staff, and 
would help us meet the needs of all. Using tools such as the performance standards and finding time to collaboratively 
assess students across each grade group will support the formation of a consistent understanding of what "developing 
and/or proficient expectations" and "emerging expectations" look like at each grade level. Then we can look 
collaboratively at various intervention strategies to support these students also across all grades.

• Begin a staff book study of a literacy program or literacy intervention strategies (seek input from an elementary literacy 
helping teacher)

• Create a committee or, in grade groups, choose a curriculum, investigate options, and report to others at a staff meeting 
or during school-based professional development

• Pilot a new assessment tool and intervention strategies with a core group of teachers or collaborate in grade groups to 
explore resources and implement a common assessment tool (professional development days, JECIC, staff meetings)

• Continue to support teachers in developing strategies to meet the various needs of all their students

• Begin to build program consistency and continuity that specifically addresses deficits in reading and writing

• Develop consistent assessment and use of the performance standards throughout the year

• Implement school-wide assessment (e.g. EPRA, IRA, QCA, school-wide write) with opportunities to mark collaboratively

• Work with our district literacy helping teacher to support our goals (e.g. common assessment ideas and opportunities)

• Collaborate with our Aboriginal support worker to further support at risk students

• Provide professional development for teachers around  topics of reading and writing (e.g. helping teacher after school sessions)

• Offer ‘book tasting’ events to help students expand their interests of what literature is available

• Facilitate school growth plan discussions at staff meetings around common practices of teaching reading and writing

• End of year report card data

• District assessment data

• More students are meeting expectations with the use of the intervention strategies

• Students are aware of assessment language from one grade to the next

• Students are assessed on a common tool with a common understanding of how to use it which is free from tester bias

School: Yennadon Elementary 

Principal: Lisa Lawrance 

Director/Assistant Superintendent: Jovo Bikic 

A. Literacy Goal (one goal per page)

B. Rationale

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Public Agenda Page 77



To: Board of Education From: Secretary Treasurer 
Flavia Coughlan 

Re: BUDGET PROCESS Date: January 18, 2023 
 (Public Board Meeting) 

Decision 

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: 

In accordance with the School Act, school districts in the province must approve a balanced 
budget and submit it to the Ministry of Education by June 30, 2023.   

School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge – Pitt Meadows) will finalize base budget estimates for 
2023/2024 after the 2023/2024 Operating Grant is announced by the Ministry of Education 
on or before March 15, 2023. 

The attached proposed 2023/2024 Preliminary Budget Process Timeline shows the proposed 
schedule of meetings dedicated to sharing the Board’s budget information with partner 
groups and the public as well as receiving budget balancing proposals and feedback on 
proposed budget balancing options.  

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the Board approve the proposed 2023/2024 Preliminary Budget Process 
Timeline. 

Attachment 

ITEM 4 

Public Agenda Page 78



2023/2024 Preliminary Budget Process Timeline 

Wednesday, January 18, 2023 Board Meeting 
• Presentation and approval of the Proposed Budget Process/Timeline

Wednesday, February 15, 2023 Board Meeting 
• Presentation of Projected Enrolments for 2023/24, 2024/25, 2025/26,

2026/27
Wednesday, February 15, 2023 Board Meeting 

• Presentation and Board Approval of the 2022/23 Amended Annual Budget

Wednesday, March 8, 2023 Budget Committee of the Whole 
• Presentation of the 2023/24 preliminary budget estimates to partner

groups and preliminary feedback from partner groups on budget priorities

Tuesday, March 28, 2023 Aboriginal Education Advisory 
• Presentation of the 2023/24 preliminary budget estimates and consultation

on budget priorities

Wednesday, March 29, 2023 Budget Committee of the Whole 
• Partner groups individual presentations to the Board of the 2023/24 budget

considerations

Wednesday, April 12, 2023 Board Meeting 
• Presentation of the Proposed 2023/24 Preliminary Budget

Tuesday, April 18, 2023 Aboriginal Education Advisory 
• Feedback on the Proposed 2023/24 Preliminary Budget

Wednesday, April 19, 2023 Budget Committee of the Whole 
• Public and partner group input on the Proposed 2023/24 Preliminary

Budget

Wednesday, April 26, 2023 Board Meeting 
• Approval of 2023/24 Budget Balancing Proposals and Adoption of 2023/24

Preliminary Budget

ATTACHMENT

Public Agenda Page 79



To: Board of Education From: Finance Committee of the 
Whole 

Re: FIRST QUARTER FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

Date: January 18, 2023 
(Public Board Meeting) 

Decision 

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE 

The attached First Quarter Financial Statements are being presented to the Board for approval at 
the recommendation of the Finance Committee of the Whole. 

On April 27, 2022, the Board of Education (the Board) approved the 2022/23 preliminary budget 
for the operating, special purpose, and capital funds. On September 7, 2022, the Board of 
Education approved amended operating and special purpose fund budget changes as well as the 
appropriation of operating surplus as at June 30, 2022 for inclusion in the 2022/23 amended 
budget bylaw. 

The attached financial statements present the operating, special purpose funds and capital fund 
projected financial results for the year ended June 30, 2023 compared to the 2022/23 
preliminary budget amended to reflect budget changes approved by the Board up to October 12, 
2022 and enrolment changes as at September 30, 2022 (Attachment A).   

These estimates do not include labour settlement costs, exempt salary grid implementation 
costs, costs for additional staffing required to support not yet funded students with diverse 
abilities, snow removal costs and increased substitute costs. These and other emerging budget 
adjustments will be considered as part of the amended budget process. 

The format of the reports reflects the annual financial statements presentation, specifically 
Schedules 2A and B, Schedule 3A and Schedule 4.  

OPERATING FUND 

Revenue – $2.15M increase 

Ministry of Education and Child Care Operating Grants - $1.74M increase 

The operating grant from the Ministry of Education and Child Care (MECC) is estimated to be 
$1.74M higher than budgeted due to changes in enrolment reported as at September 30, 2022 
as outlined in the table on the following page.   

Provincial Grant Other - $0.28M increase 

The MECC provided additional funding of $0.28M, to the $0.38M carryforward of unspent funds 
from 2021/22, to support Integrated Child and Youth (ICY) Teams.  This results in total ICY 
funding of $0.66M for 2022/23. 

ITEM 5 

Public Agenda Page 80



First Quarter Financial Statements 
Recommendation - January 18, 2023 

Page 2 
 

Tuition Revenue - $0.13M increase 

International tuition revenue is estimated to be $0.13M higher than budgeted for the short term 
pre-academic program ($0.11M) and summer school ($0.02M).  

 
 
Operating Fund Expenses – $1.20M increase 

Salaries and Benefits - $1.10M increase 

Teacher salaries are estimated to be $0.85M higher than budgeted due to the addition of 9.94 FTE 
teachers to support increased student enrolment.   

Education assistant salaries are estimated to be $0.01M lower than budgeted due to the reduction of 
4.77 FTE Education Assistants ($0.17M) as enrolment of students with special needs decreased 
offset by the addition of 3.0 FTE ICY youth peer support workers ($0.16M). 

The increase in staffing is estimated to result in increased substitute costs of $0.02M and benefit 
costs of $0.24M. 

Changes to salaries and benefits resulting from collective agreement changes for teachers and other 
employee groups that are expected to be ratified this fiscal year and effective from July 1, 2022 
onwards are currently unknown or uncertain and are not reflected in these financial results or 
projections. 

  

Enrolment Funding Enrolment Funding Enrolment Funding
July 2022 Enrolment Count

Grade 1-7 420              94,080            571              127,904          151              33,824        
Grade 8-9 130              29,120            184              41,216            54                12,096        
Grade 10-12 425              190,400          413              185,024          (12)               (5,376)         
Supplemental 76,244            112,868          -                   36,624        

Total Summer Learning 975             389,844         1,168          467,012         193             77,168       

September 2022 Enrolment Count
Standard schools 15,415        121,545,304  15,607        123,064,152  193              1,518,848   
Continuing education 3                  25,626            2                  17,741            (1)                 (7,885)         
Alternate schools 240              1,892,400       269              2,121,065       29                228,665      
Online learning 30                190,005          18                113,685          (12)               (76,320)       
Home schooling 9                  2,250               19                4,750               10                2,500          
Course challenges 30                7,380               30                7,380               -                   -                   

Total September Enrolment Based Funding 15,727       123,662,965 15,946       125,328,773 219             1,665,808  

September 2022 Unique Student Needs
Students with special needs - Level 1 14                627,900          13                583,050          (1)                 (44,850)       
Students with special needs - Level 2 970              20,641,600     959              20,407,520     (11)               (234,080)     
Students with special needs - Level 3 339              3,644,250       344              3,698,000       5                  53,750        
English language learning 1,061          1,681,685       1,135          1,798,975       74                117,290      
Indigenous education 1,341          2,098,665       1,355          2,120,575       14                21,910        
Adult education 12                58,474            28                139,583          16                81,109        
Equity of opportunity (vulnerable students) 443,217          443,217          -                   -                   

Total Supplement for Unique Student Needs 3,737          29,195,791    3,834          29,190,920    97               (4,871)        

Total Ministry of Education and Child Care 
Operating Grant 153,248,600 154,986,705 1,738,105  

* This table does not include operating grant funding that is not driven by enrolment up to September 30,  2022.

Preliminary Budget

Estimate Based On 
September 2022 Actual 

Enrollment Change

Public Agenda Page 81



First Quarter Financial Statements 
Recommendation - January 18, 2023 

Page 3 
 

Services and Supplies - $0.11M increase  

Enrolment driven supply costs are estimated to be $0.11M higher than budgeted due to increased 
student enrolment ($0.08M) and additional ICY service and supply budgets ($0.03M). 

Capital Assets Purchased – $0.01M increase 

Capital assets purchased are estimated to be $0.01M higher than budgeted due to additional ICY 
capital computer budget. 

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUNDS 

Special Purpose Funds include funds received from the MECC or other sources that have been 
designated for specific purposes.  Major Special Purpose Funds that continue in 2022/23 include the 
Classroom Enhancement Funds, School Generated Funds, Annual Facilities Grant, Youth Education 
Support Fund, and CommunityLINK.  

Three new Special Purpose Funds funded by the MECC have been established for 2022/23 and the 
restricted grants are reflected in these financial statements along with projected expenses: 

1. Early Learning & Child Care Fund of $0.18M 

2. Student & Family Affordability Fund of $1.59M 

3. Strengthening Early Years to Kindergarten Transition Fund of $0.02M 

During the first quarter of 2022/23, $4.46M in special purpose contributions was received and 
$2.25M was spent.  At September 30, 2022, $3.97M remains available for future expenditures. 
The projection to June 30, 2023 reflects a total of $27.09M in expenses and $0.35M in capital 
asset purchases.  

Classroom Enhancement Fund - Staffing 

The school district has made a submission for additional Classroom Enhancement Funding (CEF) to 
reflect the actual additional teacher staffing required to meet collective agreement ratios for non-
enrolling teachers and best efforts for classroom teachers. The additional funding required is 
summarized in the following table. All this staffing has already been allocated to schools and if 
funding is not provided by the MECC, the shortfall will have to be addressed through staffing 
changes and use of contingency reserve funds. The total number of teachers required is 2.254 FTE 
and $0.24M higher than budgeted.  

 

Classroom Enhancement Fund - Remedy 

A submission was made in November 2022 estimating remedy costs for the month of October 2022 
of $0.23M and $2.10M for the year. These estimates are not reflected in the attached first quarter 
financial statements and will change if more students enroll in the school district and as class 
organizations change in secondary schools.  

    

Description FTE Amount
Elementary classroom teachers 66.073    7,050,584$    
Secondary classroom teachers 55.876    5,962,472      
Non-enrolling teachers 33.665    3,592,358      
Total CEF required to meet restored collective agreement implementation 155.614   16,605,414    
Total CEF reflected in the preliminary budget 153.360   16,364,917    
Additional CEF required 2.254      240,497$       

Public Agenda Page 82



First Quarter Financial Statements 
Recommendation - January 18, 2023 

Page 4 

CAPITAL FUND 

The net book value of capital assets is $222.26M at September 30, 2022 which represents $41.55M 
net investment in sites; $168.59M in buildings; and $12.12M in furniture and equipment, vehicles, 
computer software and hardware.  This net book value represents the historical cost of all school 
district capital assets less accumulated amortization of depreciable asset after acquisition; it does 
not reflect current market value to sell or replace the assets.  

During 2022/23, grants from the MECC for Bylaw capital projects totaled $3.11M. 

At September 30, 2022, $3.56M, representing $3.11M Bylaw Capital plus $0.46M Local Capital 
Reserve funds, have been spent on capital building projects in progress as follows: 

• Annual Facility Grant funded projects ($1.08M)

• New classrooms setup ($0.46M)

• Glenwood Elementary gender-neutral washrooms ($0.12M)

• Webster's Corners Elementary HVAC upgrades ($0.35M)

• Westview Secondary roofing upgrades ($0.48M)

• Alouette Elementary roofing upgrades ($0.84M)

The MECC Restricted Capital Fund balance was $1.86M as at September 30, 2022 and includes $1.80M 
committed for the Eric Langton Elementary School seismic replacement and expansion project. 

Other Provincial Capital totaled $0.16M as at September 30, 2022 and represents accumulated interest 
from prior years’ funding from the Ministry of Children and Family Development funding for childcare 
facilities. 

The Land Capital Restricted Fund (school site acquisition charges) received contributions in 
2022/23 of $0.07M increasing the fund balance as at September 30, 2022 to $2.20M. 

Local Capital 

The Board’s local capital fund is comprised of previous years’ available operating surpluses, which 
are transferred to Local Capital with Board approval, and proceeds from the disposal of land. Capital 
asset additions funded locally are reported in the local capital fund.  

At September 30, 2022, significant locally funded project balances include the information 
technology capital project ($1.68M), energy management plan projects ($0.38M), new classroom 
space ($1.28M), and the Eric Langton Elementary School capital contribution ($0.70M). The local 
capital fund also contains the capital portion of the contingency reserve of $1.73M. 

The table below summarizes of the Board approved uses of contingency reserve for 2022/23, plus 
contributions and spending for the quarter ended September 30, 2022. 

Public Agenda Page 83



First Quarter Financial Statements 
Recommendation - January 18, 2023 

Page 5 

Spending for the Eric Langton Elementary School ($0.19M) and the Pitt Meadows Secondary School 
($0.18M) project definition reports by the school district will be reimbursed by the MECC once the 
capital projects are approved.  Approval was granted by the MECC for the Eric Langton Elementary 
School Seismic Replacement and Expansion project in November 2022.  

Contingency Reserve 

The Board is responsible for ensuring the district is protected financially from extraordinary 
circumstances that would negatively impact school district operations and the education of students. 
To discharge this responsibility, the Board has established a contingency reserve from available 
operating surplus, which will be used to mitigate any negative impact such circumstances might 
cause.  

Existing school district budgets are not sufficient to support the procurement or timely replacement 
of school district assets. The budget required to complete the building maintenance projects 
identified through facility condition assessments far exceeds the annual facilities grant and the 
capital funding for building enhancement projects received by the school district. This means that 
the deferred maintenance for school district facilities continues to grow and the facility condition 
index for school district facilities continues to deteriorate.  

Major equipment failures must be covered from the contingency reserve. These include, but are not 
limited to, the following: building envelope remediation, roof repairs or replacement, boiler 
replacements, server replacements, shop equipment replacements. In addition, the Board is 
responsible for any cost overruns incurred on MECC funded capital projects, and this is the only fund 
available to cover such costs.  

The Board policy requires that a contingency reserve of at least 1% of operating expenditures and 
not exceeding 3% of operating expenditures shall be maintained ($1.73M to $5.19M of the 
preliminary budget). The current balance of $1.73M equates to 1.00% of operating expenditures.  

At September 30, 2022

Current 
Budget

 Contributions 
to Date

Spending 
to Date

Balance at 
Sept 30 2022

Board Approved Uses of Local Capital $ $ $ $
Parent portal 0.02 0.02
Emergency preparedness 0.02 0.02
Energy management 0.37 0.02 0.01 0.38
New classroom setup 1.77 0.49 1.28
Childcare capital 0.15 0.15
Capital planning 0.13 0.13
Electric vehicle charging stations 0.03 0.01 0.04 0.00
HVAC upgrades 0.46 0.46
Elementary school capital contribution 0.70 0.70
Student information system for Ridge Meadows College 0.05 0.05
Virtual boardroom 0.01 0.01
Facilities equipment and vehicles 0.14 0.01 0.13
IT capital plan 1.89 0.21 1.68
PA systemcapital 0.01 0.01

5.75 0.03 0.76 5.02
Contingency reserve for local capital 1.73 1.73

Total local capital fund 7.48$            0.03$                 0.76$         6.75$               

Local Capital and Contingency Reserve

($ millions)

Public Agenda Page 84



First Quarter Financial Statements 
Recommendation - January 18, 2023 

Page 6 

RISKS TO PROJECTIONS 

Revenue 

The provincial operating grant included in these estimates may not be the same as the operating 
grant distributed by the MECC for 2022/23. The main factors that create variances of provincial 
funding are actual funded enrolment at February and May 2023, Classroom Enhancement Fund 
allocations, and other provincial funding announcements made during the remainder of 2022/23. 

Expense 

The salaries and benefits estimates are based on estimated average salaries for teachers, specific 
salaries for other employee groups, and known benefit rate changes. Actual average salaries for 
teachers and actual substitute costs may vary from the estimates based on historical trends. 
Effective March 31, 2022, the BC Employment Standards Act (ESA) was amended to entitle five days 
of annual paid illness and injury leave to all employees who do not already receive five or more sick 
or injury days every calendar year. A $0.55M operating fund appropriation was made in 2021/22 for 
this ESA amendment to cover costs in 2022/23 but actual annual experience costs are unknown at 
this time. Labour settlement costs related to the negotiated collective agreements for teachers and 
CUPE, and exempt compensation changes may not be fully funded by the MECC. 

The utilities budgets have been reduced to reflect the estimated savings associated with the 
implementation of the Energy Management Plan. Changes in weather patterns, delays in the 
implementation of the Energy Management Plan, and unexpected utilities cost increases may result 
in increased utilities costs that would have to be funded from the contingency reserve.  

These estimates assume that all costs related to the implementation of the restored Maple Ridge 
Teachers’ Association collective agreement language will be fully funded by the MECC through the 
Classroom Enhancement Fund. 

Capital Projects 

Due to their magnitude, capital projects have the potential to significantly impact the financial 
position of the school district. There is no process to assess the risk of the entire capital program; 
individual project risk assessments must be done on a continuous basis. Project agreements with the 
MECC contain contingencies to mitigate financial risk. Smaller projects consider contingency 
requirements when building the overall project budget and are managed internally. Finally, the 
contingency reserve for local capital of $1.73M is available to mitigate risk for capital projects. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board approve the First Quarter Financial Statements. 

Attachment 

Public Agenda Page 85



ATTACHMENT A

2022/23 Actual Projected

Current to  Oct 1, 2022 to

Budget Sep 30, 2022 Jun 30, 2023

$ $ $ $ $

Operating Revenue by Source

Grants

Operating Provincial Grants ‐ MECC 159,377,294        18,086,936          143,028,463        161,115,399        1,738,105           

Local Education Agreement Recovery  (382,256)              (49,460)                (332,796)              (382,256)              ‐ 

Operating Other MECC Grants  2,575,946            471,010                2,104,936            2,575,946            ‐ 

Provincial Grants ‐ Other 279,650                5,250  558,766                564,016                284,366               

Federal Grants 266,315                32,651                  233,664                266,315                ‐ 

Total Grants 162,116,949        18,546,387          145,593,033        164,139,420        2,022,471           

Tuition 9,360,345            2,181,204            7,307,234            9,488,438            128,093               

Other Revenue 582,288                271,149                311,139                582,288                ‐ 

Local Education Agreement ‐ Direct Funding from  382,256                38,226                  344,030                382,256                ‐ 

Rentals & Leases 849,095                167,258                681,837                849,095                ‐ 

Investment Income 362,866                343,551                19,315                  362,866                ‐ 

Total Other Revenue 11,536,850          3,001,387            8,663,556            11,664,943          128,093              

Total Operating Revenue 173,653,799        21,547,774          154,256,589        175,804,363        2,150,564           

Operating Expense by Type

Salaries

Teachers 74,697,483          8,086,440            67,460,825          75,547,265          (849,782)             

Principals and Vice Principals 8,706,616            2,091,836            6,610,104            8,701,940            4,676 

Education Assistants 19,879,734          2,153,698            17,719,450          19,873,148          6,586 

Support Staff 12,979,863          2,504,252            10,459,703          12,963,955          15,908                 

Other Professionals 5,704,635            1,133,857            4,580,458            5,714,315            (9,680) 

Substitutes 5,956,980            550,767                5,429,935            5,980,702            (23,722)               

Total Salaries 127,925,311        16,520,849          112,260,476        128,781,325        (856,014)             

Employee Benefits 32,635,873          4,506,635            28,366,286          32,872,921          (237,048)             

Total Salaries and Benefits 160,561,184        21,027,485          140,626,761        161,654,246        (1,093,062)          

Services and Supplies

Services 6,238,994            1,795,429            4,486,854            6,282,283            (43,289)               

Student Transportation 674,313                55,140                  619,480                674,620                (307) 

Professional Development 1,210,075            166,373                1,047,330            1,213,703            (3,628) 

Rentals and Leases 2,000  ‐  2,000  2,000  ‐ 

Dues and Fees 141,708                122,936                20,272                  143,208                (1,500) 

Insurance 757,799                204,038                556,324                760,362                (2,563) 

Supplies 4,148,172            502,516                3,699,928            4,202,444            (54,272)               

Utilities 2,538,125            345,222                2,192,903            2,538,125            ‐ 

Total Services and Supplies 15,711,186          3,191,653            12,625,092          15,816,745          (105,559)             

Operating Contingency Reserve ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Total Operating Expenses 176,272,370        24,219,138          153,251,853        177,470,991        (1,198,621)          

Interfund and Local Capital

Capital Assets Purchased 775,477                155,695                632,940                788,635                (13,158)               

Transfer to Local Capital 1,020,440            50,550                  969,890                1,020,440            ‐ 

Total Interfund and Local Capital 1,795,917            206,245               1,602,830            1,809,075            (13,158)               

Total Expenses 178,068,287        24,425,382          154,854,684        179,280,066        (1,211,779)          

Appropriated Surplus 

Use of Prior Year Surplus or Reserves 4,475,430            4,475,430            4,475,430            ‐ 

Projected Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 60,942                  (2,877,608)           3,877,335            999,727               938,785              

School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge ‐ Pitt Meadows)

Projections to June 30, 2023

Schedule of Operating Operations

Variance from 

Budget

Projected to

Jun 30, 2023

Public Agenda Page 86



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge‐Pitt Meadows)

Special Purpose Funds

As at September 30, 2022

Annual  Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom Classroom Classroom First Nation  Mental  Changing  Student & Strengthening Youth Total

Facilities Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Community Enhancement Enhancement Enhancement Student Health Results for  Early Learning  Family Early Years  Education

Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP LINK Fund‐Overhead Fund‐Staffing Fund‐Remedies Transportation in Schools Young Children & Child Care Affordability to K Transition Support Fund

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year ‐  170,597              1,048,742          12,528                4,145  79,708                76,407                ‐  ‐  ‐  19,510                85,153                56  ‐  262,000              1,758,846         

Add:   Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants ‐ MECC 517,597              54,248                ‐  ‐  ‐  57,743                72,681                1,636,492          ‐  ‐  51,000                ‐  ‐  1,588,729          ‐  3,978,490         

Provincial Grants ‐ MOE Recoveries

Other 2,500  460,864              19,707                483,072             

Investment Income ‐  ‐ 

517,597              54,248                2,500  460,864              ‐  ‐  ‐  57,743                72,681                1,636,492          ‐  ‐  51,000                ‐  ‐  1,588,729          ‐  19,707                4,461,562         

Less:   Allocated to Revenue 84,337                41,845                1,500  196,935              32,654                3,261  14,230                62,752                94,136                1,684,494          ‐  ‐  5,104  423  6,130  1,168  ‐  16,835                2,245,804         

Deferred Revenue, end of year 433,260              12,403                171,597              1,312,671          (20,126)               884  65,478                71,398                (21,455)               (48,002)               ‐  19,510                131,049              (367)  (6,130)  1,587,561          ‐  264,872              3,974,604         

Revenues

Provincial Grants ‐ MECC 84,337                41,845                32,654                3,261  14,230                62,752                94,136                1,684,494          ‐  ‐  5,104  423  6,130  1,168  ‐  2,030,534         

Other 1,500  196,935              16,835                215,270             

Investment Income ‐ 

84,337                41,845                1,500  196,935              32,654                3,261  14,230                62,752                94,136                1,684,494          ‐  ‐  5,104  423  6,130  1,168  ‐  16,835                2,245,804         

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 1,775  8,872  2,747  ‐  1,334,983          ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  4,880  ‐  ‐  1,353,257         

Principals and Vice Principals 7,874  44,816                ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  52,690               

Educational Assistants ‐  29,204                ‐  21,098                36,700                ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  87,002               

Support Staff 12,472                ‐  ‐  15,843                ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  28,315               

Other Professionals ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Substitutes ‐  175  ‐  634  16,045                246  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  17,100               

12,472                29,204                ‐  175  21,098                1,775  9,506  47,321                76,704                1,335,229          ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  4,880  ‐  ‐  ‐  1,538,364         

Employee Benefits 2,138  12,641                ‐  10,708                455  2,332  15,337                17,432                349,265              ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  1,250  ‐  ‐  411,558             

Services and Supplies 61,432                1,500  196,760              848  1,031  (267)  94  ‐  ‐  ‐  5,104  423  ‐  1,168  ‐  15,709                283,802             

76,042                41,845                1,500  196,935              32,654                3,261  11,571                62,752                94,136                1,684,494          ‐  ‐  5,104  423  6,130  1,168  ‐  15,709                2,233,724         

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers 8,295  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  2,659  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  1,126  12,080               

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (8,295)                 ‐  (2,659)                 ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  (1,126)                 (12,080)              

Net Revenue (Expense) ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Public Agenda Page 87



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge‐Pitt Meadows)

Special Purpose Funds

Projection to June 30, 2023

Annual  Learning Scholarships School Ready, Classroom Classroom Classroom First Nation  Mental  Changing  Student & Strengthening Youth Total

Facilities Improvement and Generated Strong Set, Community Enhancement Enhancement Enhancement Student Health Results for  Early Learning  Family Early Years  Education

Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP LINK Fund‐Overhead Fund‐Staffing Fund‐Remedies Transportation in Schools Young Children & Child Care Affordability to K Transition Support Fund

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Deferred Revenue, beginning of year ‐  170,597              1,048,742          12,528                4,145  79,708                76,407                ‐  ‐  ‐  19,510                85,153                56  ‐  262,000              1,758,846         

Add:   Restricted Grants

Provincial Grants ‐ MECC 517,597              542,481              256,000              56,350                500,863              577,430              726,809              16,364,917        51,000                6,000  175,000              1,588,729          19,000                21,382,176       

Provincial Grants ‐ MOE Recoveries

Other 30,000                4,300,000          250,000              4,580,000         

Investment Income ‐ 

517,597              542,481              30,000                4,300,000          256,000              56,350                500,863              577,430              726,809              16,364,917        ‐  ‐  51,000                6,000  175,000              1,588,729          19,000                250,000              25,962,176       

Less:   Allocated to Revenue 517,597              542,481              170,597              5,348,742          268,528              60,495                580,571              653,837              726,809              16,364,917        19,510                136,153              6,056  175,000              1,588,729          19,000                262,000              27,441,022       

Deferred Revenue, end of year ‐  ‐  30,000                ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  250,000              280,000             

Revenues

Provincial Grants ‐ MECC 517,597              542,481              268,528              60,495                580,571              653,837              726,809              16,364,917        19,510                136,153              6,056  175,000              1,588,729          19,000                21,659,683       

Other 170,597              5,348,742          262,000              5,781,339         

Investment Income ‐ 

517,597              542,481              170,597              5,348,742          268,528              60,495                580,571              653,837              726,809              16,364,917        ‐  19,510                136,153              6,056  175,000              1,588,729          19,000                262,000              27,441,022       

Expenses

Salaries

Teachers 17,879                178,397              24,596                13,189,005        46,307                13,456,184       

Principals and Vice Principals 32,469                196,048              228,517             

Educational Assistants 452,068              40,000                189,648              343,617              1,025,333         

Support Staff 77,800                25,000                ‐  78,862                4,000  185,662             

Other Professionals 60,200                81,263                141,463             

Substitutes 20,000                ‐  6,840  18,915                302,269              10,500                5,600  364,124             

77,800                452,068              ‐  85,000                189,648              17,879                185,237              479,797              577,179              13,189,005        ‐  ‐  10,500                ‐  127,570              ‐  9,600  ‐  15,401,283       

Employee Benefits 22,200                90,413                15,000                66,352                4,300  43,851                129,531              130,630              3,175,912          2,500  42,430                2,400  3,725,519         

Services and Supplies 141,051              170,597              5,208,742          12,528                38,316                335,428              44,509                19,000                19,510                123,153              6,056  5,000  1,577,729          7,000  255,792              7,964,411         

241,051              542,481              170,597              5,308,742          268,528              60,495                564,516              653,837              726,809              16,364,917        ‐  19,510                136,153              6,056  175,000              1,577,729          19,000                255,792              27,091,213       

Net Revenue (Expense) before Interfund Transfers 276,546              ‐  ‐  40,000                ‐  ‐  16,055                ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  11,000                ‐  6,208  349,809             

Interfund Transfers

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (276,546)            (40,000)               (16,055)               (11,000)               (6,208)                 (349,809)           

Net Revenue (Expense) ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐  ‐ 

Public Agenda Page 88



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge‐Pitt Meadows)

Schedule of Capital Operations

As at September 30, 2022

2023

Budget Invested in Tangible Local Fund

Capital Assets Capital Balance

$ $ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants ‐ MECC

School Site Acquisition Fees Spent on Sites ‐ 

Other Revenue  28,455  28,455                

Investment Income 68,915               ‐  ‐ 

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6,587,082          1,654,622  1,654,622           

Total Revenue 6,655,997          1,654,622  28,455  1,683,077           

Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 10,587,050       2,600,497  2,600,497           

Total Expense 10,587,050       2,600,497  2,600,497           

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (3,931,053)        (945,875)  28,455  (917,420)             

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets purchased 702,895             167,775  167,775              

Local Capital 1,020,440          1,020,440                 1,020,440           

Total Net Transfers 1,723,335          167,775  1,020,440                 1,188,215           

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets purchased from Local Capital  762,972  (762,972)  ‐ 

Tangible Capital Assets WIP purchased from Local Capital  ‐ 

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 762,972  (762,972)  ‐ 

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the period (2,207,718)        (15,128)  285,923  270,795              

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 82,815,065  6,456,641                89,271,706        

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of period 82,799,937  6,742,564                89,542,501        

2022‐23 Actual

Public Agenda Page 89



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge‐Pitt Meadows)

Schedule of Capital Operations

Projection to June 30, 2023

2023

Budget Invested in Tangible Local Fund

Capital Assets Capital Balance

$ $ $ $

Revenues

Other Revenue  68,915  68,915                

Investment Income 68,915               ‐ 

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 6,587,082          6,587,082  6,587,082           

Total Revenue 6,655,997          6,587,082  68,915  6,655,997           

Expenses

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 10,587,050       10,587,050  10,587,050         

Total Expense 10,587,050       10,587,050  10,587,050         

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (3,931,053)        (3,999,968)  68,915  (3,931,053)         

Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets purchased 702,895             702,895  702,895              

Local Capital 1,020,440          1,020,440                 1,020,440           

Total Net Transfers 1,723,335          702,895  1,020,440                 1,723,335           

Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Tangible Capital Assets purchased from Local Capital  3,608,672  (3,608,672)               ‐ 

Tangible Capital Assets WIP purchased from Local Capital  ‐ 

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances 3,608,672  (3,608,672)               ‐ 

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the period (2,207,718)        311,599  (2,519,317)               (2,207,718)         

Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 82,815,065  6,456,641                89,271,706        

Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of period 83,126,664  3,937,324                87,063,988        

2023 Projection

Public Agenda Page 90



To: Board of Education From: Superintendent 
Harry Dhillon 

Re: SUPERINTENDENT’S UPDATE Date: January 18, 2023 
 (Public Board Meeting) 

Information 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the Board receive the Verbal Superintendent’s Update, for information. 

ITEM 6 

Public Agenda Page 91



To: Board of Education From: Board Policy 

Development Committee 

Re: BOARD POLICY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

WORK PLAN 2022-2023 

Date: January 18, 2023 

(Public Board Meeting) 

     Information 

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: 

The Board Policy Development Committee has met and developed a work plan for the next 

four years. The goal of the committee is to review all existing board policies before the end 

of the term and ensure that all policies require by law are drafted and presented to the board 

for approval in a timely fashion.   

The work plan for 2022-2023 is included below. 

2320 Board Committees and Trustee Representation 

2410 Board Correspondence 

2500 Board Policy Development 

2900 Trustee Professional Development and Attendance at Conferences 

2919 Trustees’ Code of Conduct 

2925 Trustees – Provision of Resources 

4203 Budget Planning and Reporting 

4410 Travel Expenses 

5400 Transportation of Students with Special Needs 

5700 Personal Information Protection and Access to Information 

5701 Records and Information Management - General 

5905 Alcohol – Consumption, Possession and Storage 

6600 Naming of School District Facilities 

6801 School Closure 

7110 Whistle Blower Protection 

7213 Conflict of Interest – District Staff 

7220 Dangerous Weapons 

9200 School Catchment Areas and Student Placement 

9410 Safe, Caring and Healthy Schools 

9500 Suspension and Exclusion of Students from School 

9601 Anaphylaxis 

9605 Provision of Menstrual Products to Students 

9610 Health Care Needs 

10540 Financial or In-Kind Donations 

1-2008 Board Procedural Bylaw – Trustee Access to Information 

2019 Board of Education Appeal Policy and Procedures Bylaw 

NEW Public Interest Disclosure Act 

ITEM 7 

Public Agenda Page 92



Board Policy Development Committee Work Plan 2022-2023 
Recommendation – January 18, 2023 Public 

Page 2 

Policies in the work plan will be prioritized for review by the committee. The committee may 

also consider other policies required by law or provincial policy. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the Board receive the Board Policy Development Committee Work Plan 2022-

2023, for information. 

Public Agenda Page 93



To: Board of Education From: Trustee 
Kim Dumore 

Re: MOTION TO BC SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
ASSOCIATION ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING 2023 

Date: January 18, 2023 
(Public Board Meeting) 

Decision 

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: 

As of October 2022, the Coroner’s report showed that there have been 1,827 deaths due to 
illicit drug toxicity in BC, and of those, 28 were under the age of 19.  

The Ministry of Education included Substance Education in the K-10 PE curriculum, however 
minimal provincial guidance and training is available. 

While school districts have created local programs aimed at addressing the overdose crisis, 
this is not sufficient.  A coordinated inter-ministerial approach with the involvement of key 
stakeholders, including those with lived experience, is required to address this ongoing 
crisis. 

Related Reports & Articles: 

• Coroner’s Report BCCS Illicit Drug Toxicity Report to Oct 2022 - FINAL (gov.bc.ca)
• BC Curriculum PE Physical and Health Education Introduction | Building Student

Success - B.C. Curriculum (gov.bc.ca)

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT the Board approve the following motion for submission to BCSTA AGM 2023: 

“That the BCSTA request that the provincial government establish and fund the 
implementation of provincial guidance for substance education and guidelines for 
opioid overdose response in school settings created by a provincial taskforce 
comprised of specialists from Ministry of Health, Ministry of Mental Health and 
Addiction, Ministry of Education and Child Care, Provincial Health, FNESC, Metis 
Nation BC and representatives from all education stakeholders.”      

ITEM 8 

Public Agenda Page 94

https://www2.gov.bc.ca/assets/gov/birth-adoption-death-marriage-and-divorce/deaths/coroners-service/statistical/illicit-drug.pdf
https://www.curriculum.gov.bc.ca/content/physical-and-health-educationintroduction
https://www.curriculum.gov.bc.ca/content/physical-and-health-educationintroduction


To: Board of Education From: Secretary Treasurer 
Flavia Coughlan 

Re: QUESTION PERIOD Date: January 18, 2023 
(Public Board Meeting) 

Information 

QUESTION PERIOD – Question period will be restricted to questions only – 
statements and debate will not be permitted. Questions, with the exception of Trustee 
questions, will be limited to one question per person. Members of the public can 
submit questions for the board by emailing them to board@sd42.ca by no later than 
5:30 pm on January 18, 2023.  The email subject line should read: QUESTION 
PERIOD. All questions received before the start of the question period will be answered 
in the order they are received. This agenda item has a time limit of 10 minutes; 
extension is at the discretion of the board. 

The following written question was received by noon on January 16, 2023: 

1. Christine MacVeigh:

As per my oral question to the Board at the end of the Board meeting on December 7 
2022; I would like to know the percentage increase in remuneration excluded staff 
received in the fiscal year 2021 -2022. 

ITEM 9 

Public Agenda Page 95

mailto:board@sd42.ca


R E C O R D 

Pursuant to provisions of 72 (1) of the School Act, the following report is a general 
statement of: (a) matters discussed; and (b) the general nature of decisions resolved at the 
following meetings from which persons other than Trustees or officers of the Board, or both 
were excluded: 

November 16, 2022, Closed 

Call to Order  Meeting called to order at 4:42 p.m. 
Motion of Exclusion  Approved 
Correspondence Received 
Approval of Agenda  Approved as circulated 
Superintendent Decision Item Approved as circulated 
Secretary Treasurer Decision Item Approved as circulated 
Adjournment  Meeting adjourned at 5:11 p.m. 

ITEM 10 

Public Agenda Page 96


	January 18, 2023 Public Agenda
	ITEM 1 Opening Procedures
	ITEM 2 Approval of Minutes Recommendation
	ITEM 2 Attachment A December 7, 2022 Public Board Meeting Minutes
	ITEM 3 School Growth Plans
	ITEM 3 Attachment School Growth Plans_Summary Report
	ITEM 3 Attachment A School Growth Plans 
	ITEM 4  Budget Process
	ITEM 5 First Quarter Financial Statements
	ITEM 5 Attachment A 
	ITEM 6 Superintendent's Update
	ITEM 7 Board Policy Development Committee Work Plan 2022-2023
	ITEM 8 Motion to BC School Trustees Association AGM 2023
	ITEM 9 Question Period
	ITEM 10 2022-2023 Board Record November 16, 2022



